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Lowdermilk Church & Co., L.L.P.
Certified Public Accountants

121 N, Sterling Street

Morganton, North Carolina 28655
Phone: (828) 433-1226

Fax: (828) 433-1230

Independent Auditors' Report

IE”“““'

To the Honorable Mayor and ” f'

Members of the Board of Aldermen f'” t ”

Town of Dallas, North Carolina J;‘ t}l } 2
FM

!:E‘\:H“'.l }gt i,
Report on the Financial Statements s ; T
il - ‘i {i
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the govemmeﬁtfal activities, the: business- -type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund mﬂm‘natlon of the Town of Dallas, North Carolina
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the Town of Dallas, North Carolina’s bqslc financial statemeﬁt’siﬂs llsted in the table of contents,
{

i“’; i

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statéﬁients I

l Hi N
Management is responsible for the preparation and f U} ptqséntation élf tﬁese financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles genelagi)g?ﬁ?epted in the U 1ted States of America; this includes the design,

implementation, and maintena o St nal control rel vant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free ﬁom1 Materlai mi ﬁatement whetﬁel due to fraud or error,

Auditors’ Responmblllty ". I“ ;i'l Hm;ﬂ :i' .H

Our responmblhty § 116 Expless 0pn11£)n$iqp these fi nanclal statements based on our audit. We conducted our

audit in accor aﬁce with audlt; }g standatd 'gegenal[y accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable g{‘ Panclai audits coxgiémed in Jovernment Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United’

f. iThose: standar
about whether H’l& mnanmal statenr]

An audit involves pe:géﬁ ing plpEedmes to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements, Thé r oédures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s prepanatlon and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements,

quireithat we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
’Kts are free from material misstatement.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions,




Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the Town of Dallas, North Carolina, as of June 30, 2020, and the respective
changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the respective budgetary comparison
for the General Fund for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplemeniary Information | i l it h,

1
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of Americ ,t'-égu%ﬁi.lthat the Management’s
Discussion and Analysis, the Local Government Employees’ Retiremetﬁ‘akystem |§;qhedu[es of the Proportionate
Shate of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) and the Law Enforcement pflﬂclers’ Spet ‘i'ai\fli eparation Allowance
Schedules of the Changes in Total Pension Liability and Total B@ﬂ's’i!)‘ﬁ- Liability as a P» iﬁg‘:;qptage of Covered
Payroll, on pages X-X and XX-XX, be presented to supplement the basic financial statéﬁ'l,é'ghtg.‘,Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is requiﬂé’d.by the Goyernmental Accotinfing Standards
Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial répbiﬁpg for p‘ﬁébipg the basic fihancial statements in
an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We‘ﬁél;\';‘e;ééff)plied certain limifed procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing staridq-r(_js generally accepted in the United States
of America, which consisted of inquities of mariagement about the me'ﬂ'f_fjfsl; of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with t'r'l"éﬁ%;'g?ment’s 1'esponses'§ pt}'b’ur‘inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained duriﬂ:g Sl feii;idit; of the basic financial statements, We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the'h}formaﬁ’dh;‘ib'lclzpﬁpsﬁ-fhe limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or pn'o'\éfquja'ﬁy assufhfjch

ik 3
f

3
i

4

i I

Our audit was conductedffgi'lfﬁlﬁj} urposgjof forming opini,éi’ls on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Town of Dallas, N’é‘jii Cal’lélméi}éj }iaﬁi&cﬁnﬁncial statements. The combining and individual fund
financial statements, b].fg!gf:tal‘y sclit ules and otler s¢hedules and statistical section, are presented for purposes of
additional anal;irﬁii;‘ il hire nota requitedipart of the basic financial statements.

! Hiti R .

The combjy '15} and individualH ‘Lk:d ﬁnanchéPStatements, budgetary schedules and other schedules are the
responsiﬁili !‘Q:fi management anHi ere dérived from, and relate directly to, the underlying accounting and other
records used to p% are the basic hi ancial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applie hﬂﬂie audit of the basic financial statements, and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and recon ; _suqi;l'lhformation directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic ﬂnanc’i‘aﬁ' '@'t‘éments, or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance *,ﬁith auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the combining and individual fund financial statements, budgetary schedules and other schedules are

fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Information 4 !iﬂi”mml L ;

St |




Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated , 2020 on
our consideration of the Town of Dallas, North Carolina’s internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance, and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of
Dallas, North Carolina’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance, That report is an integral part
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Town of Dallas,
North Carolina’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Morganton, North Carolina PN " m“l'
,2020 PR ST
v ';;..
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Management's Discussion and Analysis

As management of Town of Dallas, we offer the readers of Town of Dallas’ financial statements this narrative
overview and analysis of the financial activities of Town of Dallas for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. We
encourage readers to read the information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have
furnished in the Town’s financial statements, which follow this narrative.

Financial Highlights i

;5‘ i,

«  The assets and deferred outflows of resources of Town of Dallas ¢ #3; ded its liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources at the close of the fiscal year by $26,1 86,5ﬁ9‘ (ngg :p sition),

+ The Town's total net position increased by $776,945. 3 ‘Im'w y

*  As of the close of the current fiscal year, Town of Dallas' ggverhmentai fﬁ‘ﬁid:ﬁ‘lreported combined ending
fund balances of $4,377,117, with a net increase of $519}845 in fund balance|/Approximately 8.67% of
this total amount, or $379,485, is non-spendable or restricted, ‘ ”if'l T

» At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fuﬁafp_aiance fo 'Ethe General Fun#l%as $2,169,321, or
61.33 percent, of total General Fund expenditures for 1h¢.ﬁsc‘g]l§léai;. :

+ Town of Dallas' totat debt increased by $152,282 (2.49%)‘ 'c,l;?’r'ing the current fiscal year, The key factor
in this increase was the issuance of capital leases, T

¢+ The Town’s total capital assets {net of’ ’Iz;,ﬁﬂulmulated depreciait;i!'(ﬂt? iincr»‘:‘ased by $137,792 (.68%) during
¥ t ition of capital assets.

the current fiscal year. The key factor in! %tjl;’l—iﬁ”ﬂ?‘rease is the acq
RULUTHIES

ik

B
1

Ii ‘!iA :‘.;E M 1
Overview of the Financial Statements ‘-ih }51'3@“* !flii i
e

"
il o , .
This discussion and analysis is nmmﬁ to serve as an:introduction to Town of Dallas® basic financial statements.
The Town’s basic financial sgqtém'en i )zsist of three cOmponents; 1) government-wide financial statements, 2)

.!i!i!

fund financial statements, 7 '”;1}) notes tg the financial sfﬁ;tqllnents (see Figure 1). The basic financial statements

present two different views of ‘tihﬁ.i;l"own { irough the use _Qf government-wide statements and fund financial

statements, In addition to the bés;a‘ ] E&d&iﬁl;&’tﬂz}tgmmgm; this report contains other supplemental information that

will enhance the 1?%3?5:1% iI{s_ndersta lj . !(!)f the financial condition of Town of Dallas.

it MERINS ‘!iiiv_
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Required Components of Annual Financial Report

Figure 1
Management’s Basic
. . l i I,
Discussion and Fmanﬂjh .
iiu
Analysis $fatel én&s.,
IJ l” i “!
Y B !‘
i, i
i !!ii!ilgm’;
i i '1“!‘
! i );}t:g R
: 1§13‘:;im3;*
Tih
R lli‘;i,h:
Government-wide ':gé; o Fund "H”H 1. Notes to the
8 VS E TP 3% qit
i i i
Financial | Lf}?ilﬁiaplc;,ial ‘ Financial
! HENU N TS
3} “5 ) iL”“
Statements  ,an Ii 7' Statement Statements
,,ii”-‘”“f m ;15
’ ll"
éhTmary ------ :“ > Detail

{ ” I
Basie Financial Slﬂ$9?1?)11ts r {'} EHINY
it

.....

The first tw t$tatements on pag 15 tln 0111 347 in the basic financial statements are the Government-wide
I‘manc:al, {ﬁ;ements They p ;’mde both;%hort and long-term information about the Town’s financial status.

!
The next statemcil}; 911 pages 18 hrough 27 are Fund Financial Statements. These statements focus on the
activities of the mdl 3 al patts ¢ F ithe Town’s government. These statements provide more detail than the
government-wide stat E‘ fs. Thele are three parts to the Fund Financial Statements; 1) the governmental funds
statements; 2) the budget Pibbmpan ison statements; and 3) the proprietary fund statements,

The next section of the basnc financial statements is the Notes. The notes to the financial statements explain in
detail some of the data contained in those statements. Afier the notes, Supplemental Information is provided to
show details about the Town’s individual funds. Budgetary information required by the North Carolina General
Statutes also can be found in this part of the statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad overview of the

Town’s finances, similar in format to a financial statement of a private-sector business. The government-wide
statements provide shott and long-term information about the Town’s financial status as a whole.




The two government-wide statements report the Town’s net position and how they have changed. Net position is
the difference between the Town’s total assets and deferred outflows of resources and total liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources. Measuring net position is one way to gauge the Town’s financial condition.

The government-wide statements are divided into two categories: 1) governmental activities; and 2) business-type
activities. The governmental activities include most of the Town’s basic services such as public safety, parks and
recreation, and general administration. Property taxes and State and federal grant funds finance most of these
activities, The business-type activities are those that the Town charges customers to provide, These include the
water and sewer and electric services offered by Town of Dallas.

The government-wide financial statements are on pages 15 through 17 of this 1ep<ﬂ f
55
i

Fund Firancial Statements ‘”i ;

The fund financial statements (see Figure 1) provide a more detailed loy 'k at the ’Ebﬁn s most significant
activities, A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to nﬁ]mtam control’ efl resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives, Town of Dallas, like All.other govemn{emal entities in North
Carolina, uses fund accounting to ensure and reflect comphance (01 non-compliance) wnth finanee-related legal
requirements, such as the General Statutes or the Town’s bué[get mdmaﬂce All of the funqL &f Town of Dallas
can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and pnopnetaiy fu’nds

e g
Governmental Funds - Governmental funds are used to account for Those functions 1eported as governimental
activities in the government-wide financial staten}qnts Most of the T OW basic services are accounted for in
govemmental funds, These funds focus on how asieté' gan readily be conveited into cash flow in and out, and
what monies are left at year-end that will be availaljje 'fot aé'gbeang in the next year, Governmental funds are
reported using an accounting method called modifi ecy accr u?l b Y {mg Wwhich provides a short-ferm spending
focus. As a result, the governmental fund financial st tements glve g reader a detailed short-term view that
helps him or her determine if thelﬁ iﬂj ore ot less fin Fclai resources available to finance the Town’s programs.
The relationship between gov ciffiel ities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities) and gove1nmen§§1|fu;1ds is d gc?ilbed ina 1ecohq;]1at10n that is a part of the fund financial statements,

Town of Dallas adopts an annué 13 gi I t$‘ Qenel al Fund as required by the General Statutes, The budget is
a legally adopted document that i indti{horates mput from the citizens of the Town, the management of the Town,
and the declslo g ottt 1 Bomgi about wpimh services to provide and how to pay for them. It also authorizes the
Town to obt n funds from 1dqn {fied soiu éﬁkto finance these current period activities. The budgetary statement
provided fg we General Fund &!i onsﬁate how well the Town complied with the budget ordinance and whether
or not the To t; ucceeded in pr i dmg the services as planned when the budget was adopted. The budgetary
comparison sta ﬁl 1t uses the bu etaty basis of accounting and is presented using the same format, language,
and classifications #t&l}e legal bu get document. The statement shows four columns: 1) the original budget as
adopted by the Boauj } e ﬁné budget as amended by the Board; 3) the actual resources, charges to
appropriations, and endmi aIances in the General Fund; and 4) the difference or variance between the final
budget and the actual resolirces and charges.

Proprietary Funds - Town of Dallas has one type of proptietary fund. Enterprise Funds are used to report the
same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. Town of Dallas
uses enterprise funds to account for its water and sewer activity and for its electric operations, These funds are
the same as those functions shown in the business-type activities in the Statement of Net Position and the
Statement of Activities.




Notes to the Financial Statements - The notes provide additional information that is essential to a fall
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the
financial statements begin on page 28 of this report.

Other Information - In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report includes
certain required supplementary information concerning Town of Dallas’ progress in funding its obligation to
provide pension benefits to its employees, Required supplementary information can be found beginning on page
61 of this report,

The individual fund statements and schedules are presented immediately following the required supplementary
information on pensions. Individual fund statements and schedules can be found b?g‘mnmg on page 65 of this
report. Hl

Interdependence with Other Entities - The Town depends on financial §i) i ﬂawmg from, or associated
with, both the Federal Government and the State of North Carolina. Bec 1Llse of t endency, the Town is
subject to changes in specific flows of intergovernmental revenues bq ed én modifich{ ?{ s to Federal and State
laws and Federal and State appropriations. It is also subject to chaﬁges in investment e (ngs and asset values
associated with U.S. Treasury Securities because of actions by f‘melgn govemment and Oﬂ‘lell ‘h{?ldeis of publicly
held U.S. Treasury Securities.

Government-Wide Financial Analysis ‘ z'ifsg-»
Towii ofiﬂgai_as. Net Position

x#%;i;% "

Governmenta i”i jih,, Business
Activities !f '*”HI%Q};HM' Actlvitics:' Total
2020 iy i 2020 2019
B ' l Hh

Current and other assets $]2 Eﬁﬂ R $4,266 SSJI $ 7,900,082 $ 7,085,568 $12,659,733 $11,352,155
Capital assets I)fi i { 5,811,427 !l 14,153,206 14,388,412 20,337,630 20,199,838
Deferred outflows of resources I! 340.6 ! 406,936 1% . 383,984 434 869 724,597 841,805
Total assets and deferred outflows u’ ’ ;,j.ff

of resources i l ﬁﬁé i]j] It g‘ﬁ‘sg,aso: 22437272 21,908,849 33,721,960 32,393,799
Long-term liabilities owszahc“ﬁg }i i . 2 634 2,480,261 3,584,801 3,636,576 6,269,122 6,116,837
Other linbilities ]' W!%gi'} 3645 396,734 781,489 375,341 1,146,004 772,075
Deferred mﬂov;' ﬁﬁrexoumes ‘ }L 103 40 85,190 16,860 10,072 120,267 95,262
Total llablhhes a (i?ﬁrred {'

inflows of resourcedt ” “ | 5;52 243 2,962,186 4,383,150 4,021,990 7.535,393 6,984,174

y i |

Net position: g

Net investinent in capital nsseﬂ | l“ 5 4,489,476 4,330,295 11,331,853 11,431,555 15,821,329 15,761,850

Restricted 379,173 272,678 - - 379,173 272,678

Unrestricted 3,263,797 2919791 6,722.270 6,455,305 9,986,067 9,375,096
Total net position $8,132.446 $7.522.764 $18,054.122 $17.886.861 $26.186,569 $25,409,623




As noted eatlier, net position may serve, over time, as one useful indicator of a government’s financial condition,
The assets and deferred outflows of Town of Dallas exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows by $26,186,569 as
of June 30, 2020. The Town’s net position increased by $776,945 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020.
However, a large portion of net position (60.4) reflects the Town’s net investment in capital assets (e.g., land,
buildings, machinery, and equipment). Town of Dallas uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens;
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although Town of Dallas’ net investment in
capital assets is reported net of the outstanding related debt, the resources needed to repay that debt must be
provided by other sources, since the capital assets cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. An additional
portion of Town of Dallas’ net position, $379,173 represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on
how they may be used. The remaining balance of $9,986,067 is unrestricted,

Town of Dallas, Chmme.s,, “l{ nkﬁ Position

Governmental Business-kype
Activities Ac!'I :,t . Total
2020 2019 2z il it 2020 2019
Revenues; ' "'h H M“
Program revenues: N T Hhi
Charges for services § 614,597 $ 552,754 $ili:100 203 $12,131,251 '!m{'slz 014,800 $12,684,005
Operating granis and confributions 191,150 130,112 ‘ifg ‘ .oh m\ 191,150 130,112
Capital granis and contributions 35,779 i1,842°0 i ".‘:‘- 179, 684” i, 5,000 } {l 215,463 16,842
General revenues: l'tiii'i‘.g i‘-i:“ '
Property taxcs 1,378,646 1,199,119 SR . 1,378,646 1,199,119
Other taxes 837,279 851,553 'l!! }i-.l - 837,279 851,553
Unrestricied invesiment carings 91,080 ; h 123,935 10,48 hl“ . 16,662 101,561 140,597
Other 35985 ik 0.067 98,349 ! }liigs" 62,125 134,334 (82,192
Total revenues 3,184,516 E’. i !I 688718 f.'“ 12,215,038 14,873,233 15,204,420
i l Kel l l' . ”
Expenses: é ’ l
General government 77,001 {3‘? 0 - 577,001 560,700
Public safety gi”” ”;1\3 8,697 1,687 hezt - - 1,892,697 1,687,804
Transportation j i 03 398, %9 - - 395,203 398,689
Econoric and pliysical develqplﬁé it ,I 761 20, 30“ " - - 9,761 20,301
Environmental profection ,“ | d!?ig?fi 413 478 - - 436,470 413478
Cultural and recreationat ”I’j 1332,0 “]'fﬁ 3_;’&4 80t - - 332,006 324,801
Interest on loug-tcrm dstid ;” b i E 53;@7 428 61,426 100,634 109,891 168,062 171,317
Water and sewer | ';Hiih, il %'I‘ih- - 2,883,072 2,625,936 2,883,072 2,625,936
Electric | =iiiy-} k 1itER - 7,402,016 1,391,665 7,402,016 7,391,665
Total cxpel}§ck€t ‘; | ‘gt it 3,710&5%‘7 3.467,199 10,385.722 10,127,492 14,096,288 13,594,691
Increase (decrease) il; irilw sition before t;
transfers ir | (526,051) (477,817) 1,302,996 2,087,546 776,945 1,609,728
Transfers 1 & 1“ gi‘ 1,135,733 915,733 (1,135.733) {915,733} - -
Increase {decrease) in net posttto!!i[“ ;f $ 609,682 § 437916 $ 167263 $ 1,171,812 § 776945 $ 1,609,728
Met position, beginning i $7,522,764 $7,084,848 $17,886,859 $16,715,048 $25,409,623 $23,799,896
Increase {decrease) in net positmn 609,682 437916 167,263 1,171,812 176,945 1,609,728

Net position, ending $8,132,446 $7.522 764 518,054,122 $17,886,859 $26,186,569 $25,409.624




Governmental Activities. Governmental activities increased the Town's net position by $609,682, Key elements
of this increase are as follows:

Increase in charges for services and other taxes,
Increase in property tax revenue,

Expenses increased slightly.

Transfers increased by $220,000.

- -» L] L

Business-type Activities. Business-type activities increased Town of Dallas' net position by $167,263, Key
elements of this increase are as follows:

. Capital grants increase of $174,000, !-]mh“‘
. Charges for services decreased. ii‘”(
. Expenses increased slightly. it
. Transfers increased by $220,000. i

Finanecial Analysis of the Town’s Funds _!‘i‘ i,
: It
N : t
As noted earlier, Town of Dallas uses fund accounting to ensuie, and dem? istrate comphancé
legal requirements,

i*“_‘

ith, finance-related

Governmental Funds. The focus of Town of Dallas’ governmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows, and balances of usable resources, TlSuoh information is’ uB?Ful in assessing Town of Dallas'
financing requirements, i;ii‘;umm w;t'

i i|
The General Fund is the chief operating fund of Towzh f Dal a's‘ ‘iAt ithe, qnd of the current fiscal year, Town of
Dallas’ fund balance available in the General Fund was iEZ 850 784, L\‘ tie total fund balance reached $3,171,060.
The Governing Body of Town of D g as determined ?at the Towi should maintain an available fund balance
of no less than 30%, with a target‘ép )] General Fund expenditures in case of unforeseen needs or
oppottunities, in addition to mf;étmg the cI flow needs of the Town. The Town currently has an available fund
balance of 80.60 percent ofi dé a | Fund J( enditures, wh; ¢ total fund balance represents 89.65 percent of that
same amount, ‘ fi ” ' 'Hﬂf i Htu !,1

At June 30, 2020, the éblféimnental fuﬁdﬁ f Town of Dallas reported a combined fund balance of $4,377,1 17,
with a net incre sé in fund balal ﬁ: of $519 Tzﬁ yr Included in this change in fund balance are the following
increases (de%h %ses) l ‘

General ’pug

General mj i $319,322
Other funds: 'f

CDBG Grant P‘UI K ' 4,958

Non-Major Fund ﬂ_f 195,564

o $519,845

Budgetary Highlights

The Town adopted a series of budget amendments during the course of the fiscal year, as approved by the Board of
Aldermen; applying to both the General Fund, as well as the Proprietary, or “Enterprise” Funds,
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General Fund

There were three amendments in the General Fund in fiscal year 2019-20. In the Streets/Solid Waste Department,
there was an amendment for a revised quote on the Solid Waste Truck that was financed. In the Police Department,
there was an amendment for a new, part-time code enforcement officer, In the Recreation Departiment, there was an
amendment for a donation to the Dallas Boys and Girls Club. There were two amendments in the Economic
Development Fund: an amendment for Town of Dallas signage at both 321 off ramps and another for the purchase
of property at 208 N. Holland Street.

Proprietary Funds

In the Water Fund, there was a budget amendment for engineering services on %a‘f Ls 'Gherryville Highway.

l
In the Electric Fund, there were three budget amendments: (1) for Duke E élgy’iﬂ f" ges for Lee Nuclear Plant, (2)

Completion of the park road substation and (3) appropriation of Duke EJ’\' gy Tl 'Uli? Revenue,

) i
T.0.P. T.LE.R. Fund .‘;f'if":-. !!}”
l

!
'tl at
There was one amendment to account for the Notth Carolma;Dawntown I}'ewtahzatxon Gr. r}l

,i [ !v

Capital Assets and Debt Administration “h ;':"

Capital Assets. Town of Dallas' investment in capjtal assets for its goxf&‘ ?ental and business type activities as of
June 30, 2020, totals $20,337,630 (net of accumu[ét‘@c! erlematlon) The Léssets include buildings, roads and
bridges, land, machinery and equipment, park facﬂit;l]es ﬁﬁd vehlcles
l (il ! I o

Major capital asset transactions during the year mcludq th?‘ Toilowmgi’!!“

*  Purchase of land and Fl&i du&l} $167,472 anci‘some renovations of $41,949.

*  Various general eq ?b ent and yghicles of $501 ﬁ{iiﬁ
«  Watetline relocation of $] 89,15 and basin rebuild ‘of $23,150.
«  Substation update of $4 4936,‘%%%3}‘.%1 ?l \of $ 100,000 and electric equipment and vehicles of $138,060.

¢ Various 1dle e u;pment wgrl #w osed o
U 5 l !!H

""" iy

“':'.0_...,
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Tewn of Dallas Capital Assets

Figure 4
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Land $ 381,181 $ 279,988 § 189,069 $ 189,069 $ 570,251 $ 469,057
Right of way - - 41,647 41,647 41,647 41,647
Buildings and improvements 3,202,195 3,204,513 609,721 640,242 3,811,916 3,844,756
Distribution systems 107,921 111,902 11,218,090 16,898,700 11,326,011 11,010,602
Infrastruciure 701,273 730,320 - - 761,273 730,320
Other improvements 725,021 766,567 - ”i“h. 725,021 766,567
Sewer plant - - 369,878 : gé,zsvo " 369,878 385,290
Water plant - 413,204 i'iAG‘l,BO 413,204 461,230
Vehicles and equipment 991,041 681,248 1,311,5%6 ,.f}l I,Séé*is;l 2,302,637 2,064,179
Construction in progress 75,791 36,889 - ;f!lp 389..9};4' 75,791 426,190
. \ it

Total $6.184.424 $58t1427 §1451535ﬁ6%‘n. §‘ 14,388,412 "I!|'§:20,337,630 $20.199.838

A Iigzi[i”n'i
Additional information on the Town's capital assets can be fouiid.in Note HI,A.5 of the BasiciF’ihancial Statements,
[ H "

AT g,

TP LA
Long-Term Debt. As of June 30, 2020, the Town of Dallas had $4§284,‘§ 16 of direct placement installment
purchase. The installment debt is backed by security interest in the prop:s;'ty for which it was issued.

4 i
R "”H“‘
QR ;-g;e'

%: -sH!i!ﬁI‘own of Dallas Outstanding Debt

B Eiil!;é%{";',j_. Jigure 5
Governmenté‘f, . ! l!Eﬂﬁ‘s’iness--t‘ype
i Activities ' . Activities Total
i, 208, 2020 2019 202 2019
;gg. } .1\51 i
Direct placeiment instalimgnﬁ! L ‘ } I

3??}}”‘%‘1'?5*40368‘9‘ $2,792,331  $2,956,856  $4,284316  $4,397,545

purchases ”tHﬁhQ 198
if !

Capitalized leases ., 02,963 " "40,444 29,022 - 231,985 40,444
Compensated abwﬁéé;s"!'i”;fgég iy 8 1057 109,641 106,039 109,953 189,096 219,594
Pension relatgy|'debt (LGERS‘)"H“' \ 538,4-6’@'5!* 499448 657,408 569,767  1,195871 1,069,215
Pension 1'@1&@?‘1 cbt (LEO) "f H 367,85 390,041 - - 367,852 390,041
Settlement paya lie%”“ | {%! - - - - ‘ . .
Total iiii}i“! (82684301  $2.480.063 $3584.800 $3.636.576 $6.269.120  $6.116.839

!

I

R !51! e e
Town of Dallas’ Outstandil!u ’Debt
o

The Town of Dallas” total debt increased by $152,281 (2.49%) during the past fiscal year, primarily due to an
increase in capitalized leases.
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Ticonomic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates
The following economic highlights are reflective of the fiscal year for Town of Dallas:

The Town’s general fiscal condition, much like the State and National econormies, has remained stable and is
modestly improving, with the exception of COVID-19 from March through June of this fiscal year,

Utility tax revenues continue to see modest increases, mainly due to some incteases in single family
housing,

Although unemployment has trended downward, this area remains slightly higher than the State and
national averages. I

The Dallas economy is diversified and not tied to any one primary er 6915 or type of economic activity,
thus allowing for reasonable insulation from sudden or dramatic im ?IE s to revenues.

Budget Highlights for the Fiscal Year E Endmh June 3b; 2()21

L i)
Int order to maintain the integrity of the Town’s core services, funpt101[1é and act:vmes étprm Water, Electric,
Watet/Sewer and Property Tax rates remained unchanged, Thisiwill be year (2) that the Tow ‘has passed along the
coal ash recovery charge to its citizens. Due to COVID-19, th & Town of lgllas was very stab Y ¢'in our projections
for FY 2020-21 and put a fot of capital projects on hold, depending on ifif w)enues begin to: ﬁlck back up.

(' h Jh
The fiscal year 2021 budget funds the following ongoing and/or new iil: 'tlatlves or infrastructure upgrades:

General Fund: i.:%ié%iiéii . !hhl e

Painting the interior of the Civic Bulldmg ;‘ i ‘*i 1 (e
Comprehensive Land Use Plan, : ,!§ l [
Painting some portions 01; ﬂ? ourthouse and H# entire gazebo,
Purchasing two servers o cL HaII and the Rplice Department.
Purchasing new la}?fé}?r for the’ {hce Depa1tmeﬁt z}pd Fire Department,
Leasing one vehitle Tot ﬂl}e RecliI !altﬁon Departmen
H “ fﬂi i !
Water and Sewer lTund H;{l,,

l ‘!Jli

h
Puql ésmg phase onégff new 1at1

iread water meters and software,
Brgak room remodel a b PubhccUt:lmes warehouse.
Pum ' ?ntrol Valve and li build Filters at the Water Plant,

!l!
Electric Fund: lll;l {
i
Rebuilding a tlaﬁslf ﬁﬁel for the Substation,
Purchasing of a n§ generator,

Storm Water Fund:
Comprehensive Plan,
Requests for Information
This report is designed to provide an overview of the Town’s finances for those with an interest in this area.
Questions concerning any of the Town’s information found in this report, or requests for additional information,
should be directed to the Director of Finance, Town of Dallas, 210 N, Holland Street, Dallas, N. C. 28034-1625.

You can also call 704-922-3176, visit our website at www.dallasnc.net or send an email to jnewton(@dallasnc.net
for more information.
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FINANCIAL STATEMEN
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The Basic Financial Sia*téments provide a condensed
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TOWN OF DALLAS

Statement of Net Position

June 30,2020
Primary Government
Governmental Business-fype
Assets Activities Activities Taial
Current assels:
Cash and cash equivalents 3 4,008,889 $ 5747796 $ 9,756,686
Taxes receivable, net 32,949 - 32,949
Accounts receivable, nel 89,760 1,585,678 1,675,438
Due from other government agencies 320,371 | H ; 320,371
Accrued interest receivable 18,16 jii 18,160
Mortgage receivable 230, - 230,000
Inventories | ]” P’? ‘i 288,771 289,083
Restricted cash H 59,209 ' » 277,837 337,046
Total current assets . 2l’,?’59 650 " I,H;’a‘ 900,082 12,659,733
T |[
Noncurrent assels: R ' ” i !;% e
, ’ i !

Capital assets: :‘ . ; I

Land and nondepreciable assets UMK I 3 ! 156,973 230 ll7 687,690

Other capisal assets, net of accumulated depreciation 1, 16 727 452 I3,922,489 19,649,941
Total capital assets i l'i' 6,184,424 14,153,206 20,337,630
Total assets },4 10,944,075 22,053,288 32,997 363

i i
i I ,
Deferred Quiflows of Resources ‘flsélq,”'l ‘; !%l;i““
Pension deferrals }; [' U] i, " 34b,’é13 383,984 724,597
Fid
}'4 i ‘f 1
Liabilitics h it ﬁ d%l‘l i“}li'
Accounts payable and accrued Habilities 1.l l;i' I' 59,429 497,207 556,637
Accrued interest payable '”H ml HE l!' 14,929 6,451 21,381
Customer deposits - restricted !l - 277,831 277,831
Unearned revenucs g{l El‘ “) 3 290,156 - 290,156
Current portion of fong-{erm liabities ':;'“., i ft " Y 175,107 232,338 407,445
Total current liabilities ' [mm;{- ?mmﬂmi:g.lli;. 539,622 1,013,827 1,553,449
Long-term liabilities: Tt HY B
Netpensmnhab;ilty % ,,,h|i| l!t%ui;ilhz Hi%“l, 538,463 657,408 1,195,871
Total pension li M H‘z ||ii§l} 367,852 - 367,852
Due in more tp‘a‘ F ¢ year ‘ {] ! _ i” 1,602,898 2,695,055 4,297 952
Total liabiliies ﬁ“ ”I ¢ 3,048,835 4,366,290 7,415,125
Deferred Inflows of ﬁc lirees “
Pension deferrals N ] l“ lé 103,407 16,860 120,267
Total deferred inflows of resol il ;iﬂm! 103,407 16,860 120,267
H tf

Nef Position ¥
Net investment in capital assets 4,489,476 11,331,853 15,821,329
Restricted for;

Stabilization by State Statulc 319,564 - 319,904

Streets - Powel] Bill 47,332 - 47332

Public safety 11,877 - 11,877
Unrestricted 3,263,797 6,722,270 9,986,067

Total net position
The nofes lo the financial statements are an infegral part of this stateinent,
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§ 18,054,122
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TOWN OF DALLAS

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds

June 30, 2020
Major Funds Total Total
General CDBG Grant Non-Major Governmental
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,849,436 $ 20,732 $ 1,138,721 $ 4,008,889
Taxes receivable, net 32,949 - . l h - 32,949
Accounts receivable, net 59,748 - ii, i30,0 12 89,760
Due from government agencies 320,371 | ” - 320,371
Accrued interest receivable - 18 Iqol ”” - 18,160
Inventories 312 $ il 312
Mortgage recelvable - 2$p 000 f h 230,000
Restricted cash 59,209 E “f u 59,209
4l NI
Total assets $ 3,322,025 "gi 268 8§i2h,‘ $ 1,168, 733«|] 4,759,650
i‘l tfi-“ ‘
Liabilities t%;
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ ;. 57861 § CHi 8 1,569  $ 59,429
Total liabilities Ha Rl l Gt 1,569 59,429
LT i
Deferred Inflows of Resources 'r% l;gl“‘-}ii“ié 'l!ii v
Property taxes receivable 32;9&19{ | ! ' ”; L - 32,949
Unearned mortgage revenue i} 230,000 - 230,000
Other fees receivable il .ii 60, 15&;, - - 60,156
Total deferred inflows ofres;gwf il 93,105 {0 230,000 - 323,105
I 'i'i'

Fund Balances l'“ ’“lm”fili}'.‘u \ ;
Nonspendable: .H“I’lmi%l"

Inventories 1" SNIHS . 312 - - 312
Restricted: il i mw-

Stabilizatié)njh% tate Statute ‘ii ) 319,964 - - 319,964

Streets - Powell '% ﬁ 47,332 - “ 47,332

Public safety ll 11,877 - - 11,877
Committed: Public safetiég,}“ 191,412 - - 191,412
Assigned: i !{

Storm Water ;l - - 288,963 288,963

Capital Project - 38,892 228,651 267,543

Top Tiet Program - - 649,550 649,550

Subsequent year's expenditures 430,842 - - 430,842
Unassigned 2,169,321 - - 2,169,321
Total fund balances 3,171,060 38,892 1,167,104 4,377,117
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of

resources and fund balances $ 3,322,025 $ 268,892 $ 1,168,733 $ 4,759,650

The notes fo the financial statements are an inlfegral part of this statement,
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TOWN OF DALLAS

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
To the Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2020

Total Fund Balances, Governmental Funds $ 4,377,117

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
Statement of Net Position are different because: i“” I,
1,

if
Capital assets used in governmental activities Ii Il !l‘
‘are not financial resources and, therefore, are not ,,f!1j ' i l ‘
reported in the funds i '$1

Gross capital assets at historical cost ﬁ“ " " $9 91‘“2 0

Accumulated depreciation ”:1 (3,730, Sﬂﬁhli L 6,184,424
Ak

§
! it
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions are not répqlted u‘i e

in the funds il 'i 340,613

H‘
‘:l
Liabilities for earned revenues considered defeq l’¢d ﬂows of ”H

. i
resources in the fund statements iH“ i ’

Property taxes receivable E% ula &{l“' : 32,949
B
}I
Long-term liabilities used in gmiﬁlmﬂ}? tal activities Qre not
financial uses and thewfoxq;éile not rlted in the fuT‘d
Accrued interest on long t¢1 debt m (14,929)
Long-term debt .T]El [ ,HH; H“ " 0 -’ (1,694,948)
Compensated absences Il ;“ie " i (83,057)
Net pension | [jabi itM“ i “"i%%ll (538,463)
Total pe ’Lim liability *;“l% ; " !I'“j;l, (367,852)
i!irﬁ ‘ {lj ;
Deferred mﬂm% of resources 1 H‘ted to'pensions are not reported in the funds (103,407)
Net position of gol&l‘#rlr'xentai qg;tlvmes $ 8,132,446
i

]\ i
The nofes to the fi nancral lyfatements are an integral part of this stafement.
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TOWN OF DALLAS

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Major Funds Total TFotal
General CDBG Grant Non-Major Governmental
Fund Fund Funds Funds
Revenues:
Ad valorem taxes $ 1,370,925 3 - $ - $ 1,370,925
Other taxes and licenses 63,541 - i;”““n .o 63,541
Unrestricted intergovernmental revenues 754,370 - ‘“ - 754,370
Restricted intergovernmental revenues 191,150 | {?””;a l - 191,150
Permits and fees 13,924 1;}'!!' S .“l!*h - 13,924
Sales and services 395,208 - }‘ii - 395,298
Investment earnings 84,195 IH‘Q:\““-‘A,QSS i”“}??}? 91,080
Miscetlaneous 87,268‘”‘ . iiil“] . 87,268
Storm water fees ity i T 209,2‘%1,3,5.5!f 209,242
Total tevenues 2,960,671 it 4bis8. 211,169 3,176,797
ii:*:{d}t‘l
Expenditures: R
General government . 535,534 i “ - - 535,534
Public safety ;{!);,955 875 *“?154!' ' 1,965,875
Transportation ! ! 405 *532 - il ’ - 405,537
Economic and physical development ‘?i‘! JEI‘U’i“mi”i " v 201,950 201,950
Environmental protection ' I78',1()86 ‘ 'l' i - 53,654 531,734
Cultural and recreational H m” 00,726 KL - - 300,726
Debt service: i” , l !!l
Principal retirement 12&,@ 83 - - 126,883
Interest and other chargest* ':3 ' 63 h ' - - 65,145
Total expenditures m} A ‘Ilﬂg,;p ) 877,780 - 255,604 4,133,384
Revenues over (undet)ltem?ndltmes It};}il 3k (917 109 4,958 {44,436} {956,587)
i it il o it
Other Finan l’l‘g Sources (Usea;)}qi ‘ "il!i"} i
Proceeds qq l apital financing i] *l [I! | 340,699 - - 340,699
Transfers - it Th | | ‘ y 895,733 - 240,000 1,135,733
Total other fi nan&i*%i?urces (uses) 1,236,432 - 240,000 1,476,432
! $ 319,322 $ 4,958 § 195,564 3 519,845

Fund balances, beginning
Net changes in fund balances
Fund balances, ending

i
Net changes in fund ba‘l%!&%? ‘ l.|' [
i
]l

$ 2,851,738 3 33,934 $ 971,600
319,322 4,958 195,564

$ 3,857272
519,843

$ 3,171,060 $ 38,892 $ 1,167,164

$ 4,377,117

The nofes o the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF DALLAS

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the

Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Stalement of Activities
are different because;

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the

the Statement of Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their ]i I”{”n
ii |

¢stimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense, This is the amounﬂ”
by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the cutrent period, i il
Capital outlay i ,
Depreciation expense o
Gain (loss) on sale of asseis Ji 1}i e
Proceeds from sale of assets R > g?ii!_«

H
s

I
Contributions to the pension plan in the current fiscal year are not i
included on the Statement of Activities

Benefits payments paid and administrative expense for ]fJ'EOS'SHd Hre not
included on the Statement of Activities ’

Revenues in the statement of activiti ﬂ o not provide cnfment
il ]
financial resources are not aepmt d T in the funds. it
¥ii B

1&1{4 purpose
b |
The issuance of long—telm debt pm\“f‘jp cwlé} ﬂnaﬂcﬁal 1esomces to governmental funds,
while the repayment of & pr incipal 0 -term dobt consumes the current financial
resources of the v’eii“n Hfﬁl fi ds Neiﬂi itransaction has any effect on net position,
This amount | ihe net effect of tJ?r,} dlffelehé $ the treatment of long-term
and 1eiatec}; T 8. ‘ iTi !
New loﬁg-tel L bt issued ’
Principal paymén| long-term de }
Change in acer uecl 2; és“est payable {| ‘

J | .l
Some expenses reported i 111l tjé gfﬁ ement of activities do not require the
use of current financial resorces and, therefore, are not reported as
expenditures in governmental funds.
Compensated absences
Pension expense
Pension expense (LEQ)

Change in deferred revenue foi

.!‘i

tl

Change in net position of governmental activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
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$ 519,845

758,532
(385,534)

22,993
(22,993)

121,417

23,735

7,721

(340,699)
126,883
(2,283)

26,584
(232,101)

(14,417)

b3 609,682




TOWN OF DALLAS

General Fund and Annually Budgeted Major Special Revenue Fund

Page 1 of 2

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

General I'und

Revenues:

Ad valorem taxes

Other taxes and licenses

Unrestricted intergovernmental revenues
Restricted intergovernmental revenues
Permits and fees

Sales and services

Investment earnings

Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:
General government
Public safety
Transpottation
Environmental protection
Cultural and recreational
Debt service:

Principal retirement

Interest and other charges
Total expenditures

Revenues ovey: {Undei) expend llﬁs

Other I‘lllfiiliﬂi]} ?oulces (Uses):
Proceeds from ca" i Iif'mancmg
Appropriated fund ﬁ?

Transfers in "{ “5 o
Transfer out J' 1
Total other financing souree: uses)

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance, beginning

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance, ending

21

Variance With
Final Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget } ””h}éptuai (Negative)
$ 1,251,145  § 1,251 Aé“ $ 1,370,925 $ 119,780
58,100 58 ,mo [ l 63,541 5,441
769,086 7%9 086 ]ii 754,370 (14,716)
321,397 Enszz 897 1@ 150 (132,747)
11,000, 11,000 13 % ! 2,924
419, }96 421,204 395, $"" (25,906)
110,458 107{,133 84,195 (22,993)
68,942 l*:. 164,434 87,268 22,834
3,009,319 3' 006,054 2,960,671 (45,383)
fry.
‘gif!jﬁizs.h “1“}& m
li ’<=I’62131929 623,959 535,534 88,395
iiziss 3§94 e i 1,973,590 1,965,875 7,715
i55= 95 ;[‘[H82 967 405,537 177,430
1535 167 545,592 478,080 67,512
;l””””i I 169,933 374,933 300,726 74,207
“!!!“. . ”] 11‘1{5’3’7 115,027 126,883 (11,856)
H ll - %Hlliil!‘lpi ., 60,481 59,640 65,145 (5,505)
”!fll' CUHEEE L 413,551 4,275,678 3,877,780 397,898
;Jrll { l}i e i}:‘}!t“
l 1|“ '
i ulg}ii , " (1,404,232)  (1,269,624) (917,109) 352,515
i H
[T
ll 110,000 146,597 340,699 194,102
, 387,499 238,294 - (238,294)
906,733 895,733 895,733 .
. (11,000) - 11,000
1,404,232 1,269,624 1,236,432 (33,192)
$ - $ - 0§ 31932 0§ 319322
$ 2,851,738
319,322
$ 3,171,060
conf,




TOWN OF DALLAS

General Fund and Annually Budgeted Major Special Revenue Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Page 2 of 2, cont,

Revenues:
Investment earnings
CDBG revenues

Expendifures:

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Other TFinancing Sources {(Uses):
Transfers out

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance, beginning

Fund balance, ending

iil'l!\

The notes to the financial Smfemehn'i

i,msiiih}l S

HHH“HH

CDBG Grant
Variance With
Fintal Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget y 1 i lh iActual (Negative)
s - H e s s sow
13,292 292 lhl. - (13,292)
— |\,§i
13,292 it 13292 'ui}m958 (8,334)
A SHIE
il "i”'} it
13,292 13,292 *H},l- 13,292
e T o
ity 4,958 4,958
"::ih
T []
.;IE!UIE!»»_ ! “sl"l'i
i “-'“H!i:sm i
i “;] g - 4958 8 4958
3 T wT n;n
1‘ 'li]
{I;ii 33,934
{
il $ 38892

e

W
!
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TOWN OF DALLAS

Statement of Fund Net Position

Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2020
Business-type Activitics
LEnterprise Funds
Waler and
Sewer Llectric
Assets Fund Fund Total
Current assefs:
Cash and cash cquivalents $ 1,625,034 Q;!h't@,l{ﬂ,’i& 5,747,796
Accounts receivable (net) 526,21 g 1,059,468 1,585,678
Inventories 88 “ 200,099 288,77¢
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 73, 9 ! i 203,910 277,837
Total current assels 2,353,842 s 586,240 7,900,082
i " ' }[’f t
i ,l;uéia o i}h}'i‘
Noncurrent assets: N ! ,i[ !1 :
Land and other non-depreciable assels Al 158,909 gi, bt 230,717
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation S Wa. 8,507,028 541546)!" 13,922,489
Total noncurrent assets FE R, sssslétw 5,487,269 14,153,206
RIEINES
Total assets v 1’6}979,779 11,073,509 22,053,288
- ;3
Deferred Qutflows of Resources ‘i!m.“ ““ ‘
Pension deferrals ' !i{f?m;;h“ 190 49]!” 193,493 383,984
H HUNIT 1N
i Uity .
Liabilities ';ii !’gl“!%iii;ig.-% _i,“
Current liabilities: W rﬂg! a8 ;fi
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities m! 'it?‘ 475,075 422,133 497,207
Customer deposits - restricted ”l | ”m ) “ 73,927 203,904 277,831
Long term debt payable- current l 'ii‘ 167,633 64,705 232,338
Accrued interest payable }H! | LH 11! i 4,957 1,494 6,451
Total current labilitics ‘llu'i il fi W 321,592 692,236 1,013,827
||n L TR
Noncurrent liabilities: | ’Iiii’i"‘ }‘,!g Hi
Long term debt paya Ilc»l"f ”i?“,aimu Rt 2,477,514 111,502 2,589,016
Accrued compen ‘ecf absecnces "}‘gil i ,‘I Eijf.“, 58,365 47,673 {06,039
Net pension llaﬁ’ Hi! 1”‘ 126,134 331,274 657,408
Total noncuf}ent % glitics ' il o 2,862,014 490,449 3,352,463
i {
Total Habilities {!“! it x } 3,183,606 1,182,684 4,366,280
Deferred Inflows of Resourcds by .,'f
Pension deferrals ! Il“{l“ 8,364 8,496 16,860
Net Positi A
Net Posifion
Net investiment in capital assels 6,020,790 5,311,063 11,331,853
Unrestricted 1,957,511 4,764,759 6,722,270
Total net position 3 7,978,301 § 10075822 18,054,122

The notes ta the financial statements are an integral part of this statenent.
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TOWN OF DALLAS

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Business-type Activities
Enterprise Funds

Water and
Sewer Electric
Operating Revenues: Fund I‘und Total
Electricity sales $ T”l” 3*,1! 46,827 $ 8,146,827
Water sales 1,849,059 *f 1,849,059
Sewer charges 990 80511 l “ - 990,805 ;
Water and sewer taps 39 §7§ “ ty - 39,575
Other operating revenues 116,132 i \ ‘J.?.S 058 244,190
Total operating revenues _2\,955,570 274,886 11,270,456
! A i
RIS
Operating Expenses; i " ili! '
Electrical operations v ‘in 1y 1,884,13 1,884,132
Electrical power purchases TS 4,968,542 4,968,542
Water and sewer operations 5753;980 - 1,573,080
Watertreatment and distribution by, 521'!,31 ﬁi - 521,812
Waste collection and treatment '[E!“'iir 387,51 iil g - 387,514
eciati e
Depreciation l!{ ‘]EH:::" 400,666 395,502 796,168
Total operating expenses ‘!‘l 2,883, 072 7,248,176 10,131,249
i e l'g Il!
T i
Operating income (loss) IH m l l l llli;i 2 498 1,026,709 1,139,208
H‘ {
Nonoperating Revenues (Ex? fes) ! “‘ .
Investment earnings 4 . s i }!:’ ‘ - 10,482 10,482
Rental income I;l *IHH !qu{, o " 82,800 - 82,800
Grant revenue i?; r 179,684 - 179,684
Gain (loss) on d;sgesdilbfda‘p;tga asses *;Ehz,l (1,014) 16,563 15,549
Coal ash recoygfy revenue g " !%1; " - 129,747 129,747
Coal ash regc?fg y charge li| ;Eli - {150,000) (156,000)
Interest oft | L debt J v {100,634) (3,840) {104,473)
Total nonoperati J%ifenues {expens il' 160,836 2,952 163,788
it
Income {loss) before tlem%ﬁr and 94 ital contributions 273,335 1,029,661 1,302,996
tl
ik
Transfers (to) from other funh
General Fund-payment in heu of taxes - (895,733) (895,733) ‘
Capital Reserve Fund . (79,857) (79,857) |
T.O.P. T.LE.R, Program - (160,143) (160,143)
Changes in net position 273,335 (106,072) 167,263
Total net position -beginning 7,704,966 10,181,893 17,886,859
Total net position - ending § 7978301 § 10,075,822 $ 18,054,122

The notes to the financial statements are an infegral part of this statement,
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TOWN OF DALLAS
Page 1 0f2
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Business-type Activities

Enterprise Funds
Water and
Sewer l;]ﬂ;gctrlc
Fund zii Fund Total
Cash Flows From Operating Activities: i[ ” ‘
Cash received from customers $2, 864;273 ! ms 340,483  $11,204,756
Customer deposits received ; 2 629 l H 423 18,052
Cash paid for goods and services ' ,(sl i965817) (5, 36{} 129} (6,596,946)
Cash paid to or on behalf of employees for services A (1,080,766) (1,077 525),. (2,158,291
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities ,r!i!ig? 489 %31,19 1,978 25?* 2,467,571
H i‘.: 511‘ ‘
Cash Flows From Non-Capital Financing Activities: ‘ "l;g‘
Transfers - in (out) R (1,135,733) (1,135,733)
Net cash provided (used) by non-capital ﬁnancmg %q;‘,(lvxtles i i\,w (1,135,733) (1,135,733)
! %}“H:%H.; “

Cash Flows From Capital and Related ‘!h h\;%l”‘%i%' ! i :

Financing Activities: '1I " il
Acquisition and construction Oﬂﬁél?ﬁl‘i  assets ‘ $i‘ (228,362) (332,300} (560,662)
Proceeds from sale of capltﬁ]iasscts I 511 13,555 37,386 50,941
Grant revenues itith '?iji" 179,684 - 179,684
Payment of coal ash net ofxecqiin ;i[ ’”Hffil I m .*7 - (20,253) (20,253)
Proceeds from bmrowmg { 15 i - 132,265 132,265
Principal paid op: 1o gjuteim ebt ll (191,570) (111,890) (303,460)
Interest pai éh long-term dei?l i Hiilw. (101,186) (6,198) (107,384)
Net cash pi{i} ided (used) by ¢ [¥1t~al and -lI '

related ﬁnan@ihi activities (327,879) (300,990) (628,869)

1

Cash Flows Fromlujl.ﬁtmg {ih tivities:
Lease income ? h ““;i“ 82,800 - 82,800
Investment earnings - 10,482 10,482
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 82,800 10,482 93,282
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 244,240 552,011 796,251
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,454,721 3,774,661 5,229,382
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $1,698,961  $4.326,672 § 6,025,633
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TOWN OF DALLAS
Page 2 of 2, cont,
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 39, 2020

Business-type Activities
Enterprise Funds

Water and
Sewer mlectl ic
Fund .;H Fund Total
Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) fo Net Cash ﬁﬂ 1}'
‘Provided (Used) by Operating Activities: i i:%j ”“
Operating income (loss) $ ii]l z:’z‘,’4g8 lqar 709§ 1,139,207
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net M e ! “

:J

cash provided (used) by operating activities: i

{0,
: \ i
Depreciation ;!ii?i" . 400,'99{6 395,505

it 796,168

Change in assets, deferred outflows of resources 1'“{:%‘5;5. it .
and liabilities: {it.
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (lb‘?ﬁ%??) 65,598 (65,699)
(Increase) dectease in inventory % }fj iy 14, Ifg‘ij;‘ii‘i‘ 33,422 47,437
(Increase) decrease in deferred outflows of reso %IC é H. v
pensions : i H“i I%i 250 25,635 50,885
(Increase) decrease in net pension liability ‘5] 470 44,171 87,641
Increase (decrease) in defeuegi;iﬁﬂgw of resources|
pensions [ ‘ 3,367 3,421 6,788
Increase (decrease) in aedé)u‘n s paya and uiié
accrued liabilities j ’““lhﬁ!*g N o 19,258 371,748 391,006
Increase (declcasc) in accrued Ua Hiio 10 i (537) (3,377) (3,914)
Increase (dem?ase) h!bust?mel de'pq)s ts 2,629 15,423 18,052
i il
Net cash, pi j%}Tl\ded (used) by oua ting acmut:es $ 489319 $1,978252 § 2,467,571
i |
Supplemental §L glash Financing Activities:

ﬁi ule of No
Purchase of fixed a;f with t[{ql: issuance of debt $ 35692 3§ - $§ 35,692
The notes to the finan m( ;éments are an integral part of this statement,

o
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TOWN OF DALLAS, NORTH CAROLINA

Naotes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2020

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of the Town of Dallas conform to generally accepted accounting principles as
applicable to governments. The following is a summary of the more significant accounting policies:

A, Reporting Entity 'i““”h

The Town of Dallas is a municipal corporation that is governed b lected mayor and a five-member
‘ Y

Board of Aldermen. ! [1

B. Basis of Presentation - Fund Accounting ,:(' fie, gr- ) Wi ] )

| t

Government-wide Statements. The statement of 1ét posmon and the statement ? ,actlvttles display
information about the primary government, Thesé’ l;atements q'{c ude the ﬁnanc1a activities of the
overall government, Eliminations have been made td 1i nlrmzé the:double counting of internal
activities. These statements distinguish between the gOVeminental and business-type activities of the
Town. Governmental activities generally are fmanced ‘rhloil‘g1 ;faxes, intergovernmental revenues, and
other non-exchange transactions. Busu’,ie;;ﬁ tP/pe activities are qaﬂced in whole, or in part, by fees
charged to external parties. h ”ll e h

.11 "11
The statement of activities presents a comﬁnrlsor} 56 \i}ééh réct expenses and program revenues for the
different business-type activmes of the Towl ﬂd for each. netion of the Town’s governmental
activities. Direct expe ﬁ;\% té hose that are épemfically associated with a program ot function and,
therefore, are clear}; lidellti ; ' to a particular;function. Indirect expense allocations that have been
made in the fungsi kye been reversed for the stafement of activities. Program revenues include: (a) fees
and charges pafd by th leCIpl 1 }ﬁ; 0ods or sérvices offered by the programs and (b) grants and
contributions that are ;ég& t’éd j! itmg the operational or capital requirements of a specific program.
Revenu&s }hﬁgﬁue not clasé]ﬂbd as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general
1eveﬂu‘és ! 11 II )

;\l‘q”f Fmanc:al State h nts, THL fund financial statements provide information about the Town’s
fund H palate stater.r:E}Ts for each fund category - governmental and ploprietaly are presented. The
emphaé ‘(L und finan ?l statements is on major govemmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in
a sepalate i} n Al} emaining governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as
non-major fu

l l !H

Proprietary fund’ opelatmg revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions
associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party
receives and gives up essentially equal values, Non-operating revenues, such as subsidies, result from
non-exchange fransactions, Other non-operating revenues are ancitfary activities such as investment
earnings.
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TOWN OF DALLAS, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2020

The Town reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund., The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Town, The General Fund
accounts for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. The
primary revenue sources are ad valorem taxes, State grants, and various other taxes and licenses, The
primary expenditures are for public safety, street maintenance and conﬁﬂ'ygtlion, sanitation services, and
other general government services. ,’}l "

i L;
Special Revenue Funds. The Special Revenue Funds are useﬁi}t!(‘) a éi lf}t for the proceeds of specific
revenue sources (other than special assessments or major capitz}l projeé% ); that are legally restricted to
expenditures for specified purposes. The Town has one SjgeialRevenue ﬁ: ’Ui the CDBG Grant Fund.
The CDBG Grant Fund is used to account for a mortgaéé recéivable loaned tf ;fé)‘ugh a federal grant
. gl I'Fl'l.qﬂ
program. il ‘ ,lhh
NIRRT | !
S i "
The Town reports the following non-major govemménltlgl,fu‘z}d'g:i e
il
Vil
Storm Water Fund. This fund is used to account for fees"c}ﬁl{ cted, and monies spent, in connection
with the Town’s storm water run-off, 'E}H ll‘i] ”l'ﬁ!ill
BRI . illejlii
! ; ? “ ! b E ] l % [
Capital Project Fund. This fund is use'(i[to acfétiqqﬁfrrﬁmds that are committed for use for capital
outlay, h it i“hﬂ!ﬁ
i

i
N
if

g !
“T,0.P. T.LE.R. (T, 'Hgﬁﬂi Options Prmli}{iing Tangiﬁle Investment in Economic Revitalization)
Fund. This fund ig la'lf econﬁ&- 4 developmen }ngram funded and maintained by the Town to offer
lisited, but tar gt@f{i}public ecollomic assistanc% in support of private sector investment in assets
needed to spurjob c’:"é:éitfpn, b F‘[jllhef%s“‘iscotor growth, and overall economic vitality.

Ul T

The TOl‘,‘\’/jlgli mﬁﬂg';g{he foll Q&’!WT major enferprise funds:
it S, i

. nh
A il Hillsy,
W .'(jer and Sewer'Fj ih'l Thi!suwid'is used to account for the Town’s water and sewer operations.
1;” l.L ‘ | ] N
Ele q'.ti"[ Fund. This fui id is used to account for the Town’s electric operations.
H

{
Measurelillltﬁlil, Focus i d Basis of Accounting
i !

In accordance &;'ﬂi' ﬁorth Carolina General Statutes, all funds of the Town are maintained during the
year using the m$diﬁed accrual basis of accounting,
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Government-wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements - The government-wide and proprietary
fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus. The
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the accrual basis of
accounting, Revenues are recorded when earned, and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are
incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Non-exchange transactions, in which the
Town gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) eﬂl;lféi, value in exchange, include
property taxes, grants, and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue J;‘ﬁém property taxes is recognized in
the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from fc{raqm‘g J f donations are recognized in the
fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been sat?m‘lé‘d. 1]” L

"Eys ' {
Amounts reported as program revenues include: 1) chargdﬂ fo customers o‘ﬁ%éﬂ plicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and'contributions, and 3)ii3f$:pital grants and
contributions, including special assessments. Interndily dedicgted resources are 'i‘ﬁ%prtéd as general

. THMN ¥ " E
revenues rather than as program revenues, lee.Wig%; general repnues include alj'taxes.
g, it
, o

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and e}%(b‘éﬁé:es from non-opetating items, Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing serVi@: and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s ﬁ'r';irll! jpal ongoing operaEBh?.‘ 'The principal operating revenues of
the Town’s Enterprise Funds are chargé‘%i&{)'gisﬁmers for sales 'adg‘j liervices, The Town also recognizes

. . i G ti .
as operating revenue the portion of tap fegs inté ‘dgg to recover the cost of connecting new customers to
the water and sewer sysfem. Operafing eﬁbenses;f&" 'éﬂtéi'ﬁ'rfse' funds include the cost of sales and
services, administrative expenses, and depréciation on capifal assets. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition gﬂ%ﬁ%ﬂ

g

ted as non-dBérating trevenues and expenses,
: i
l
Governmental Fufid iFinancial 1atements - Go'uqmnmental funds are reported using the current financial
resources measure:ﬁek: ¢ focus ;?d gfﬁ modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method,
revenues ate recognized [{heli il

ulléilpfgé; and available, Expenditures are recorded when the related
fund li@lf)firl]i;tm §i?r|1|gu.1'red, é'),(_&’;gpt for principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and
judgménts, an d(ﬁ::l)iﬁi}?gnsated' ‘qb‘?lqnces, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have
{ a’t%lred, General cApit lasset’zlﬂ?'f?iiisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds.
,nlé ?]upe of general iottli -i eI dgb‘ and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing
sourq{:is}i l l]
|

1 i .
The TownL’fcé*‘ siders al ,l‘evenues available if they are collected within 90 days after year-end, except
for property L s, ﬁ\ valorem taxes receivable are not accrued as revenue because the amount is not
susceptible to &H#‘ﬁﬁ‘al. At June 30, taxes receivable for property other than motor vehicles are materially
past due and ate' not considered to be an avaifable resoutce to finance the operations of the current year,
Also, as of September 1, 2013, State law altered the procedures for the assessment and collection of
property taxes on registered motor vehicles in North Carolina. Effective with this change in the law,
the State of North Carolina is responsible for billing and collecting the property taxes on registered
motor vehicles on behalf of all municipalities and special tax districts. Property taxes ate due when
vehicles are registered. The billed taxes are applicable to the fiscal year in which they are received,
Uncollected taxes that wete billed in periods prior to September 1, 2013, and for limited registration
plates, are shown as a receivable in these financial statements and are offset by deferred inflows of
resources,
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Sales taxes and certain intergovernmental revenues, such as beer and wine tax, collected and held by the
State at year-end on behalf of the Town are recognized as revenue. Sales taxes are considered a shared
revenue for Town of Dallas, because the tax is levied by Gaston County and then remitted to, and
distributed by, the State. Most intergovernmental revenues and sales and services are not susceptible to
accrual because, generally, they are not measurable until received in cash. All taxes, including those
dedicated for specific purposes, are repotted as general revenues rather, E!mp program revenues. Under
the terms of grant agreements, the Town funds certain programs by @;%mbmation of specific cost-
reimbursement grants, categorical block grants, and general reve 0 f Thus, when program expenses
ate incurred, there are both restricted and unrestricted net posif p 1a il, I ble to finance the program. It
is the Town’s policy to first apply cost-reimbursement grant ré?ou;ces %th programs, followed by
categorical block grants, and then by general revenues, fl[,, f! } 1
[

Budgetary Data <!l | i l{ "
q‘l‘ . ||

The Town's budgets are adopted as required by thc N01t11 Camlgna General Statiites. An annual budget
is adopted for the General Fund, CDBG Grant Fund, Sto; 'Watel Fund, Capital Project Fund, “T.O.P.
T.LE.R.” Program Fund, and Enterprise Funds. All annual }'ﬁ) ropriations lapse at the fiscal year-end.
Project ordinances are adopted for Capitai?m;ects The enteﬁ% e fund projects are consolidated with
their respective operating fund for 1epoi$tt1 g’p rposes, All bud etJS Are prepared vsing the modified
accrual basis of accounting. Budget o:dlqanceé al ?V\q ifor the tr. qnsfei of funds within the department, as
long as expenditures do not exceed the apﬁtopz 1ayons ét:{ fdepartmental level for all annually
budgeted funds, and at the pmJect level for tl 1’nultl~yea1 Ends Amendments are required for any
revisions that alter total itures of any i nd or that change departmental appropriations by more
than $2,500. All a g dmengﬁ just be appm\ﬁ d by the governing board, and the Board must adopt an
interim budget tha ()(PVGIS tha time until the anh'u,al ordinance can be adopted.

Assets, Liabilities, De ?ﬁd h“ [‘f&%ﬁh}‘l‘lt)ws of Resources and Fund Equity

[flll (i

1osits sm(l }}qvestmé‘q ?
!

t fet
‘Hl” !l 11 deposits of th‘% own ani’made in Board-designated, official depositories and are secured as
[Aq ired by State [G. S. 159- 31]. The Town may designate as an official depository any bank
Jj ngs assomatﬁ n whose principal office is located in North Carolina. Also, the Town may
esta h time de &sn accounts such as NOW and SuperNOW accounts, money market accounts,
and cel f‘l?ates ot deposxt

State law [£1.S. 159-30(c)] authorizes the Town to invest in obligations of the United States or
obligations fully guaranteed both as to principal and interest by the United States; obligations of
the State of North Carolina; bonds and notes of any North Carolina local government or public
authority; obligations of certain non-guaranteed federal agencies; certain high quality issues of
commercial paper and bankers' acceptances and the North Carolina Capital Management Trust
(NCCMT). The Town’s investments are reported at fair value, Non-participating, inferest earning
contracts are accounted for at cost, The NCCMT Government Portfolio, a SEC-registered (22-7) a
money market mutual fund, is measured at fair value. The NCCMT-Term Portfolio is a bond fund,
has no rating and is measured at fair value, As of June 30, 2020, the Term Portfolio has a duration
of .15 years. Because the NCCMT Government and Term Portfolios have a weighted average
maturity of less than 90 days, they are presented as an investment with a maturity of less than 6
months, :
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Town pools money from several funds to facilitate disbursement and investment and to
maximize investment income and considers all cash and investments fo be cash and cash
equivalents.

Restricted Assets n ]”H

il
Customer deposits held by the Town before any services aﬂé st}lp f ied are restricted to the service
for which the deposit was collected. Powell Bill Funds %}ie also ¢ Jﬁ%x ed as restricted cash
because they can be expended only for the puiposes qqtlmed in G.S. ‘1 gl ~41.1 through 136-41.4,
Federal Asset Seizure Funds are also classified as restricted cash, becau e they can only be
expended for the purposes of the expenses as§001ated w1th forfeited opelatloivs'on ‘used to finance
general investigative expenses. _I v 5‘ iy, |

Governmental activities )

General Fund _ ‘i “ l
Streets s i L 347,332
Public safety f‘lf!“jflm._ “‘i‘ i 11.877
I Wi, i 59.200
i ;'”f% % Hie ¢
; - i N i‘!jtfl;i?'
Business-type activities ;l : “!' Hik
Water and Se ﬁgﬁund !llf
Custome ﬁéﬁ ! ‘} 73,927
Electric El ] .
Custo}{\e 3depos:ts ';!.“ 203,910
R it L
Total busmess ube;éctglh Qszfiizs?;;z-' 277.837
i I 223
otal i $337.046

" #Total 1est1;¢fgd cash'i
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4, Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable

In accordance with State law [G.S. 105-347 and (.S, 159-13(a)], the Town levies ad valoremn taxes
on property other than motor vehicles on July 1, the beginning of the fiscal year. The taxes are
due on September Lst (lien date); however, interest does not accrue until the following January
6th. These taxes are based on the assessed values as of January | 21}}9 As allowed by State law,
the Town has established a schedule of discounts that apply to lﬁﬂ(es thiit are paid prior to the due
date. In the Town’s General Fund, ad valorem tax 1evenuesia %nepo:’ted net of such discounts,

iii H|| 1
{ " s]
C—
All receivables that historically expenence uncolidbtible accounts ate s u'n net of an allowance
for doubtful accounts. This amount is estlmafeﬁi by analyzmg the peicentag% of feceivables that

were wriften off in prior years, Vi , i ,’

5.  Allowances for Doubtful Accounts

1”!

6. Inventories and Prepaid Items ‘ “!‘:‘

The inventory of the Town is value[(} at cost (first-in, ﬁls y ), which approximates market. The
Town’s General Fund inventory co (PL ‘é‘m ,expendable suqa 1és that are recorded as expenditures
as used rather than when purchased); The lmv fifor 1es of the Town s enterprise funds consist of
materials and supplies held for subseduent qs'i h ﬂe}st ‘of these inventories is expensed when
consumed rather than when purchase T] ! rn'

il u
Certain paymg ﬁs to ve {s reflect costiiapphcable to future accounting periods and are recorded
as plepald 1té& s in both government-wide ‘and fund financial statements and are expensed as the

h
items are ised. “M‘ llHlIiH,l[i ;u.: 0
7. pzfamssefs ! ‘u

! Capltal assets h eﬁned b lhe government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than
i* ll la certain cost and

est;maf d useful life in excess of two years. Minimum capitalization costs
i!éi s follows: g} $3, 000 buildings, improvements, substations, lines, and other plant and
j}rLbutlon systengbf $5,000; infrastructure, $20,000; furniture and equipment, $5,000; and
veh i(éﬁ $5,000, ;[Donated capital assets received prior to June 15, 2015 are recorded at their

est;matéatmn vafue at the date of donation, Donated capital assets received after June 15, 2015
are recor é tacqmsmon value. All other purchased or constructed capltal assefs are reported at
cost or est;}nated historical cost. General infrastructure assets acquired priot to July 1, 2003
consist of the road network and water and sewer system assets that were acquired, or that received
substantial improvements subsequent to July 1, 1980, and are repotted at estimated historical cost
using deflated replacement cost, The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the
value of the asset, or materially extend assets’ lives, are not capitalized,
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9.

o
i

"”iilltt

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful
lives: '

Asset Class LEstimated Useful Lives
Infrastructure 30
Buildings EH-!? 30-40
Improvements . i;[! .25
Vehicles ”H ; 3-10
Furniture and equipment _”!i ,m ‘ 7-10
Distribution systems: : li‘; ' l]f‘\

Water and Sewer i ', "lli%%lﬁo

Electric :,;p‘-* e il pﬂq

Deferred Qutfiows/Enflows of Resources ”!}:l 1;{
RS N
In addition to assets, the statement of financial ;Iiéfsf‘it;igll'!i;‘\;ill sometimes report a separate section
for deferred outflows of resources. This separate fihangjal statement element, Deferred Outflows
of Resources, represents a consumption of net position’ 'ﬂi'ﬁ .applies to a future period and so will
not be recognized as an expense Opi{'\{:f; enditures until ther {HT],“ g Town has one ifem that meets this
criterion, contributions made to tlleipedéiﬁﬁtplan in the 2020!fiscal year, In addition to liabilities,
the statement of financial position wijl soméﬁ;ﬁﬁ%g gport a separate section for deferred inflows of
resources. This separate financial sta%‘gme;{lt ’élenﬁeﬁt} [fl;j'éferred Inflows of Resources, represents an
acquisition of net ﬁ@ﬂ jon that applies 'f'?é future period and so will not be recognized as revenue
until then. The ]! ‘x“ﬁ ;everal items ‘t:hat meet the criterion for this category - property taxes

receivable, Lilgtr#%imed Mokt :age revenue, c'n”;el; fees receivable and pension deferrals.
i BIRE
-F H -

P
IRER}

Long-Term Obl Eﬂ o

Ig;ﬂl‘é‘ 'g'ti*fs.frég-gmgllt-wiag lEf‘wancial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
lézatements;léiﬁ"E-;erm deﬁtg !alif other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicable gov 1{11-1:1 ental act]! {ties, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of
z?ﬁt position. Boﬁ Dpremiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds
1§ g ‘ the straight-}itfe method that approximates the effective interest method. Bonds payable are
re % d net of the»l pplicable bond premiums or discount, Bond issuance costs, except for prepaid
insurti ‘(? costs, gije expensed in the reporting period in which they are incurred. Prepaid insurance
costs are éj qsﬂééd over the life of the debt.

o O

P

In fund firlancial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as
well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported
as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are repotted as other financing
sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses, Issnance costs,
whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service
expenditures.

33




TOWN OF DALLAS, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2020

10. Compensated Absences

The vacation policy of the Town provides for the accumulation of up to twenty days earned
vacation leave with such leave being fully vested when earned. For the Town’s government-wide
and proprietary funds, an expense and a liability for compensated absences and the salavy-related
payments are recorded as the leave is earned. The Town has assy ggléd a first-in, first-out method of
using accumulated compensated time, The portion of that tlm that is estlmated to be used in the
next fiscal year has been considered to be immaterial, thelelfq e o current liability has been
reflected in the government-wide financial statements. (l’ 'l m¢,

The Town’s sick leave policy provides for an unhmiibd aécumuiatlonio earned sick leave. Sick
leave does not vest, but any unused sick leave acmfmuiated at the time of ',16t11ement may be used
in the determination of length of service for r;tn ement benefit purposes. énhfi the Town does not
have any obligation for the accumulated sick! leqve until 1; iq actuaily taken, 1o accrual for sick
leave has been made. i,

11, Net Position/Fund Balances

T
Net Position l{‘m” i Im ]i;”!
Net position in government-wide anql pl()fll‘létq}'y rund ﬁnanclal statements is classified as invested
in capital assets, restricted and unresty l‘cted es(}1 1(:’{‘? nbt position represents constraints on
resources that are either externally imp ed by medito s, grantors, coniributors, or laws or
regulations of otheﬂ Q«?p‘?ﬁ ments, ot 1mhosed by law thtough State statute.

|
Fund Bala céé W, i 'i B
In the governmbﬂ j fund f } al stateménts, fund balance is composed of five classifications
designed to disclo 1t1 élhle }@f ¢onstraints placed on how fund balance can be spent.
Jl|hih“"‘u
|The governmgT,ﬁql fund ‘t})pgzs classify fund balances as follows:

‘ ;(’
%'”' “Non-spendable Fund BaianLe This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because
gh?g are either: (a)g tin spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained

int c}f l

ki1
Invll“j] io% the portion of fund balances that is not an available resource because it represents
]

the ye ﬂénd balance of ending inventories, which are not spendable resources.

Restricted Fund Balance - This classification includes amounts that are restricted to specific
purposes externally imposed by creditors or imposed by law.
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Restricted for Stabilization by State Statute - North Carolina G.S. 159-8 prohibits units of
government from budgeting or spending a portion of their fund balance. This is one of several
statutes enacted by the North Carolina State Legislature in the 1930's that were designed to
improve and maintain the fiscal health of local government units. Restricted by State Statute
(RSS), is calculated at the end of each fiscal year for all annually budgeted funds. The calculation
in G.S. 159-8(a) provides a formula for determining what portion gﬂfpnd balance is available for
appropriation. The amount of fund balance not available for a (I)pt iation is what is known as
“Restricted by State Statute”. Appropriated fund balance in dﬁs}’ ‘f:md shall not exceed the sum of
cash and investments, minus the sum of fiabilities, encun ‘P an é,{ l nd deferred revenues arising
Jfront cash receiplts, as those figures stand af the close of the fi iscal E tr: next pr ecedmg the budgel.
Per GASB guidance, RSS is considered a resource uhml v@luch a lesn;¢tlon is “imposed by law
through constitutional provisions or enabling leglslatlon " RS8S is 1educécf inventories and
prepaids, as they are classified as non-spenda lé Outstanding Encumbnano ﬁl{ire included within
RSS. RSS is included as a component of Réstgicted Net 119?1‘[10{1 and Restup ¢d Fund Balance on

the face of the balance sheet, ‘i Lo it

ih
a', ,}l
Restricted for Streets - the Powell Bill portion of ﬂjﬂ balance that is restricted by revenue
source for street construction dn%mamtenance expen $ tes, ~This amount represents the
balance of the total unexpende bh/? Blll funds. l
Restricted for Public Safety - the bomoq;bf‘ ﬂ!l id Pq ance used to account for narcotic

enforcement, i o

At JL
Committed Fypt Bale! ‘ Hithe portion oﬁ!ﬁmd balance that can only be used for specific purposes
imposed b'y éﬂhgjm ity voteiby quorum of Ll‘qwn of Dalias’ governing body (highest level of
dec:su)n—makmg it,\thou ‘ '@ e govelnmg ‘body can, by adoption of an ordinance prior to the end
of the fiscal year, 1]1‘11tt 21 béla icé: ‘Once adopted, the limitation imposed by the ordinance
remqmﬁ Fq;. place until ]a]stIat action is taken (the adoption of another ordinance) to remove or
ré\/lse the tm[tqﬁ on. ”agl ;

e” Hja
|
,nl”‘hl ommitted For P LWC Safe - the portion of fund balance used to account for future obligations
ﬁ 1e Law Enforc hnent Officers’ Separation Allowance.

Assllb,ﬂ? Fund Bg}ance the portion of fund balance that Town of Dallas intends to use for
specific |.11 os¢§ but does not meet the criteria to be classified as committed. The Board of
Aldermen’ ég the authority to assign fund balance. The Board may also assign fund balance as it
does when ‘appropriating fund balance to cover a gap between estimated revenue and
appropriations in the subsequent year’s appropriated budget.

Subsequent Year’s Expenditures - the portion of fund balance that is appropriated in the next
year’s budget that is not already classified in restricted or committed. The governing body
approves the appropriation.

Assigned for Storm Water - the portion of fund balance that has been budgeted by the Board
for maintenance of storm water.
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Assigned for Capital Project - the portion of fund balance that has been budgeted by the Board
for eligible CDBG expenditures and capital outlay.

Assigned for TOP TIER - the portion of fund balance that has been budgeted by the Board for
economic development.
I ]h,

Unassigned Fund Balance - the pottion of fund balance that h ﬁot been restricted, committed, or
§:
assigned to specific purposes or other funds. lg! li“

Town of Dallas does not have a formal revenue spendmg pohcy t iLﬁ 'p?owdes guidance for
programs with multiple revenue sources. However, fh@ Fihance Ofﬁoe Wlll use resourees in the
following hierarchy: bond proceeds, federal funds, State ‘funds, focal, nl&i{l’own funds, Town
funds, For purposes of fund balance classific tion, expenditures are to be 4 ﬁgt from restricted
fund balance first, followed in order by comﬁﬁtted fund bﬂl nee, assigned 1y d balance and, lastly,
unassigned fund balance. The Finance Ofﬁce1 ha§ tlge authm ity to deviate from this policy 1f' it is
in the best interest of the Town, ek {é} .
gt
‘The Town of Dallas has also adopte(? mlmmum fund b;i ‘l}qe [poilcy for the General Fund which
instructs management to conduct th‘e‘f q,ss of the Town ni'such a manner that the available fund
balance is at least equal to, or greatol tha G(}"p budgetaci expenclltmes Any portion of the
General Fund balance in excess of 7d% of pﬂdgété xpéndltmes may be appropriated for one-
time capital expenﬁz‘mxles or transfer th%g)dcess foa (ﬁapltal Reserve Fund.
!
12. Defined Benﬁﬂti Cost- m! r'ing Plans !11’
il 1:!} h i
For pur poses of. suu kp{; et pensmn habihty, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resourc ? éte ! éﬁslbns and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
posltt the Local ¢ gbyemmental Employees’ Retirement System (LGERS) and additions
tcb‘ deduc ons'ﬂ‘q;n LGE > fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they
J are reported bﬂr ik ERS {itlhs purpose, plan member contributions are recognized in the period
s*‘ ” ltm which the contt|iintions ate due. Town of Dallas’ employer contributions are recognized when
U and Town of Dallas has a legal requirement to provide the contributions. Benefits and
Létlguéd!s are 1ecog1 ed when due and payable in accordance with the terms of LGERS,
Tnv ts are 1 01ted at fair value,

|l<”“

Management Estlmates

F. Other

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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II. Stewardship Compliance Accountability

A. Significant Violations of Finance - Related Legal and Contractual Provisions

1.  Noncompliance with North Carolina General Statutes
h“h

Excess Expenditures Over Appropriations ii K
G.S. 159-28(a) states that all moneys received and expendg{t y a local government or public
authority should be included in the budget ordinance F} ;i ﬁpent that exceeded the
authorized appropriations as follows: i il t ;H

h I K
i

Water Fund - Debt service was ovetspent ﬁy $6 981,
Capital outlay was overiﬂent by $3 611, h

General Fund - Debt service was ovelspent by $1 7;9 81,
Police was overspent by $2i ,26

These over expenditures were dup to the acqulsltlon oPUiﬂ\ icles through lease purchases that were
not included in the budget. The B?laiwdi Wl I review the buagkt; nd budget amendments will be
adopted prior to making expendit lFs tllla excqeded budgeted amounts,

vl‘ ¥ ;I i ihi i”}if .
111,  Detail Notes on All Funds -a?‘ AR

|
A.  Assets “!t ”l” ]l ‘ii
‘l'] L
1. Deposits ! ) |}!‘j
f{ 'Hlla;ll itin,
All thc? Fe osxts of wn are ettflé; msmed or collateralized by using one of two methods.
gk J1~E:'De pated h d, all deposits that exceed the federal depository insurance coverage

f evel are co latg: é lized witt s?guutles held by the Town’s agents in the Town’s name. Under the
Poolmg Method‘ 1ch is a;!:ollatenal pool, all uninsured deposits are collateralized with securities
},1 ld by the State asmet"s agent in the name of the State Treasurer. Since the State Treasurer is
L in a fiducia capamty for the Town, these deposits are considered to be held by the Town’s
age E their namg! The amount of the pledged collateral is based on an approved averaging
metho {for ﬁ non- ﬁ{felest bearing deposits and the actual current balance for interest-bearing
deposits,'! ?posntcu ies using the Pooling Method report to the State Treasurer the adequacy of
their poole collateral covering uninsured deposits. The State Treasurer does not confirm this
information with the Town or the eserow agent. Because of the inability to measure the exact

amounts of collateral pledged for the Town under the Pooling Method, the potential exists for
undercollateralization. This risk may increase in periods of high cash flows.

ul{

However, the State Treasurer of North Carolina enforces strict standards of financial stability for
each depository that collateralizes public deposits under the Pooling Method, The Town has no
formal policy regarding custodial credit risk for deposits, but relies on the State Treasurer to
enforce standards of minimum capitalization for all Pooling Methoed financial institutions and to
monitor them for compliance, The Town complies with the provisions of G.S, 159-31 when
designating official depositories and verifying that deposits are properly secured.
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At JTune 30, 2020, the Town's deposits had a carrying amount of $2,405,306 and a bank balance of
$2,211,492, Ofthe bank balance, $250,000 was covered by federal depository insurance, and the
remainder was covered by collateral held under the Pooling Method. At June 30, 2020, the
Town’s petty cash fund totaled $1,154.

2, Investments iw“i hy.

At June 30, 2020, the Town’s investment balances were as ﬁ@:k?l '

Valuation h Book xl‘lu
Measuremen“ L “ hi
Investment by Type Method ' 6/30/19 }1 Maturity Rating
‘i R

N. C. Capital Management Trust 'li' ‘\‘ ':“h

Government Portfolio Fair Value Levql | iii’ $5,741,837 ¢ N/A AAAmM

Term Portfolio Fair Value LeValiL‘ 1,945,435 0.15 years (a)  Unrated
Total Al §1687272

'h
All investments are measured us:hg!fh@ market approach: &élng«puces and other relevant
information generated by market tiénsaéﬂdn.s mvolvmg 1deﬁ ical or comparable assets or a group
of assets. ‘,h ¢|l i ““l

I] e

Level of fair value “ﬂ chy Level 1 deb{ securities are valued using directly observable, quoted
prices (unadju?té r, markets fof |1dentscal assefs.
(a) This mfﬂtlél Hh] rtlon i |L1e Term POlthIllb

‘ ““? W
Interest. Rate Risk. !h‘ éTown La’s'no ‘f‘mmai investment policy regarding interest rate risk. Asa
r cans g1 ‘lnmtmg its éh,po$u1e to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates, the Town’s

mtemal investjpi it pohc | its the Town’s investment portfolio fo maturities of less than 12
=i
months, 1t H '

Lo

IH it Risk. The |own has no formal policy regarding interest rate risk, but has internal

(ﬁ nent ploc u1es that limit the Town’s investments to the provisions of G,S, 159-30 and
1est11 E ¢ pulch se of securities to the highest possible ratings whenever particular types of
securitict 1 ;*ated The Town’s investments in the N, C, Capital Management Trust Government
Portfolio c ued a credit rating of AAAm by Standard and Poor’s as of June 30, 2020, The
Town’s itvestment in the N. C. Capital Management Trust Term Portfolio is unrated. The Term
Portfolio is authorized to invest in obligations of the U.S, government and agencies, and in high
grade money market instruments as permitted under North Carolina General Statutes 159-30 as
amended,

';M” .}
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3. Receivables - Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The amounts presented in the Balance Sheet and the Statement of Net Position are net of the
following allowances for doubtful accounts;

General Fund: {?”ih
Taxes receivable l;;ig ! $17,928
Accounts receivable ;]n; 408
Storm Water Fund-accounts receivable ;EI; |“| 176
i « H* 1 18.512

Enterprise Funds: i !
Electric Fund-accounts receivable ';;"‘-‘ e ‘mﬁ;iﬁ 65,893
Water and Sewer Fund-accounts receivable ;' it
LN | !
M i
AT
! “:‘ H

1y

Total

L4
4. Mortgage Receivable Hi
Pursuant to an agreement dated Ahg%‘;g% 2002 betweem H an of Dallas and the North
Carolina Department of Commerce} N Qn of Commumty Ass1sta11ce, the Town received a
Community Development Block Gr Eipt in thé‘ At unt of $250,000. The purpose of this grant was
the lenovationflefulbishmg of the Da’ilas mgh Schb 'lpt&lldmg into apartments, including street,
water and sewer i &L? ements, as welll,q§ historic plesewatlon The project was actually done by
a private busmegs E oW OWnS thefbulldmg Under the agreement, that business is to repay a
mottgage he! y the T& h in the origind},amount of $230,000, with interest accruing at 2%
annually le1¢ fn dified 1gan repayment aéiéé’ment requires annual payments of $3,720, and the
remaining unpai Jg ne pal' F}L&ntglest is'due in full on December 10, 2024, The mortgage is
plesentec[ in the @ Gnant! nd bidlance sheet as deferred revenue, since the funds can only be
gd bﬁdﬁa,é. Town for iﬁrlthe approved projects qualifying under the CDBG program,

!i ,l‘
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8, Capital Assets

Primary Government
Capital asset activity for the primary government for the year ended June 30, 2020 was as follows:

Beginning il hy Ending
Balances Increases Deui‘gases * Transfers  Balances
Governmental Activities: ;g] }
Capital assets not being depreciated: }ii f§ [ “ N
Land $ 279,988 § 101,1940 . - § 381,182
Construction in progress 36,889 38 02 i‘ ‘Eé”]i' - 75,791
Total capital assets not being depreciated 316877 § 140 095" $ - :159 - 456,973
U ')m“
¢ i
Capital assets being depreciated: li l m
Buildings 4,459 747 $ I1 ],7 153, o 3§ -~ ¥ - 4,576,900
Distribution 115,707 fl‘ - - 115,707
Other improvements 1,027,593 ?m . - 1,027,593
Vehicles and equipment 3 7&4} 163 501,283 “”“Il 339, 080 - 2,866,367
Infrastructure 871892, i - 871,392
Total capital assets being depreciated 10,17§,63§ g . 618.436 $1339.080 § . 9457958
i TR
H F L
Less accumulated depreciation for: ili i ’!f'l
gultldglgf “!;”””H 1 255 234 $ lig ;l;i $ - % - 1,37‘71,;32
istribution ' . - ,
Other improvements ﬂ””l “l 261 026l - 41,545 - - 302,571
Vehicles and equipment i ; b 3,022,916, f 191,490 1,339,080 - 1,875,326
Inﬁastluc?ule o | “L “ i*l[ }' “M.H 4. 072 29.046 - - 170,118
Total accumulated, depn:ﬁe‘:tatlon E };l 4,684,052 $ 385.534 $1.339.080 $ - 3,730,506
gt it Hi, “i l:
Toftal capita ﬁgsets being deplbéi’ ed, ne ’!i', 115,494,549 5.727.452
Govemn;,ed% |' $5.811.427 $6.184.424

‘ Tctmty capital ass l fn, net

Iy,
o




TOWN OF DALLAS, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2020

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

General government $ 97,487
Public safety 190,886
Public works 21,304
Environmentat protection 41,282 ﬁ“i :
Cultural and recreational 34,576 ili; ",
Total depreciation expense 385 S ' it
R
Beginning fii ” l| Ending
Balances Incleﬁses Deerea eS Transfers Balances
Business-type Activities: iy ll l
Electric Fund: a , i Hin o
Capital assets, not being depreciated: e , “Fl :
Land $ 71,808 M8y, ‘-}j[g,,$ - - $ 71,808
Construction in progress 389,302 byt 380,301 - -
Total capital assets not being depreciated 4610110 $ i - $ 389301 § - 71.808
NI
- i
Capital assets being depreciated: E'if_ag L ”t“}%t i
Buildings 64_4,@';;13” 3 - - . 644,951
Distribution system 6,9$§,7f 1 “{};ei 583,541 o 4,834 - 7,537,418
Equipment . . 2,918,558 o i ISS}Q.QQ‘ 207,366 - 2.849.252
Total capital assets being deprec:ated 10,522,Q20 d 721 $§ 212200 § - 11,031,621
Less accumulated depr eclanon 5&)1 ]m“ “
Buildings !%l 183 608|§ 22,095 $ - . 205,703
Distribution system . 3,439,806 il 194,601 4,834 - 3,629,572
Equipment “l l 5”““1 1,788.621" 178,807 186,543 - 1,780,885
Total accumulated Feptematmn mil T35 0§ 395502 0§ 191377 $ - 5,616,160
il il
Total capit?ﬂh’sz‘;ets bemg da?lemated néﬁ}.;ﬂ - 5,110,185 5415461
Electrié ﬁ”{q? capital asses, nef U 5,571,204 5.487.269
I
Water and Sew ’m
Capital assets no gl? tdepleclzf
Land A 117,261 % - 3 - - 117,261
Construction in pmogﬁl % ti? - - - - -
Right of way \ 41,648 - - - 41,648
Total capital assets not being depreciated 158909 % - 3 - $ - 158.909
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 300,869 % - 3 - 8 - 300,869
Distribution system 11,345,012 189,152 - - 11,534,164
Equipment 1,166,834 51,752 124,205 - 1,094,381
Sewer plant 1,579,007 23,150 79,445 - 1,522,712
Water plant 2,018,061 - - - 2.018.061
Total capital assets being depreciated 16409782 § 264034 $§ 203650 $ - 16,470,186
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B.

i to establishg amen
it ”” ﬁ

June 30, 20206
Beginning Ending
Balances Increases Decreases Transfers Balances
Business-type Activities, continued:
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings $ 121,968 § 8,427 § i $ - § 130,395
Distribution system 3,965,216 258,703 il hy, - 4,223,919
Equipment 913,843 46,948 } 109 637 - 851,154
Sewer plant 1,193,718 38,562 ff' 79,445 - 1,152,835
© Water plant 1.556.830 48.026]' l b . . 1.604.856
Total accumulated depreciation 7751575 § 40%666; $ 1895’9% - 7,963,159
t ‘i
,i‘
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 8,658,208 ‘ “ }; T . 8507.028
1’ : l 1
Water and Sewer Fund capital assets, net 8.817.117 - i, i :;h l 8,665,937
5!;";53 i
Business-type activities capital assets, net  $14,388,412 ' 33{;{ E $14,153.206

—— gt
Liabilities *3 I
'} ) fftt

1. Pension Plan and PostemploymenﬂOhll%atlbnfs% 1 ,[“;

a. Local Govelmﬂﬁ“ {
Plan Dqﬁuptlon Tli

LEmployees’ %Fetlrement System

i

e )

iTown of Dallaé is-a participating employer in the statewide Local

Govefnménté Empll yees’ Retirement System (LGERS), a cost-sharing, multiple-employer

defined bene 16 e ol t\ z{h ;admunsteled by the State of North Carolina, LGERS

qgiquship is Q}ﬁq] ised of genelai employees and local law enforcement officers (LEOs) of

il i" 'Par 1bipatmg local @Q Tmmental entities, Article 3 of G.S. Chapter 128 assigns the authority
\d l?aneﬁt provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly.

” Managemet the plan 1s vested in the LGERS Board of Trustees, which consists of 13

“I[ members — nnil' lappomted by the Governor, one appointed by the State Senate, and one

] l ppointed by the State House of Representatives and the State Treasurer and the State

ggﬁ rintendent, who serve as ex-officio members. The Local Governmental Employees’

T ‘L ent System is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the
State Wt[North Carolina. The State’s CAFR includes financial statements and required
supplgmentary information for LGERS. That report may be obtained by writing to the Office
of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1419, by
calling (919) 981-5454, or at www.08C.11C. #OV.
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Benefits Provided - LGERS provides retirement and survivor benefits. Retirement benefits are
determined as 1.85% of the member’s average final compensation times the years of creditable service.
A member’s average final compensation is calculated as the average of a member’s four highest
consecutive years of compensation, Plan members are eligible to retire with full retirement benefits at
age 65 with five years of creditable service, at age 60 with 25 years of creditable service, or at any age
with 30 years of creditable service. Plan members ate eligible to 1etuq;W;¢h partial retirement benefits
at age 50 with 20 years of creditable service or at age 60 with five ﬁhls of creditable service (age 55
for firefighters), Survivor benefits are available to ehgdale bene {:ﬁa‘ ¢s of members who die while in
active service or within 180 days of their last day of service and w %;L'i:ve either completed 20 years of
creditable service regardless of age (15 years of creditable setvice for Firef] ghters and rescue squad
members who are killed in the line of duty) or have com;b,leted‘ﬁve years ef ervice and have reached
age 60. Eligible beneficiaries may elect to receive a mbnthly Survivor’s A fZﬂnate Benefit for life or a
return of the member’s contributions, The plan dgés not plowde for automatldll:h) sterelirement benefit
increases. Increases are contingent upon actua1iaﬁgams of thqipian

J| i .E
five years of creditable service as an officer or at any age le 30 years of creditable service. LEO
plan members ate eligible to retire with gmal retirement bel F at age 50 with 15 years of creditable
service as an officer, Survivor benefitd 'g‘ei Q’v ilable to eligible: beﬂefimaues of LEO members who die
while in active service, or within 180 days o £t én‘ la day of sgtvice and who also have either
completed 20 years of cleditable service ﬂngaidleés o‘?’ e or have completed 15 years of service as a
LEO and have reached a e 50, or have co le‘ted five y z;fs of creditable service as a LEO and have
reached age 55, or h vtl ’éd ‘B eted 15 years @f creditable service as a LEQ if killed in the line of duty.
Eligible beneficia 16 may Y10 receive a ﬁlonthly Survivor’s Alternate Benefit for life or a return of
the membesr’ s ca l{tibutlons ii

Contributions - Conn 1l1,m qli p dUiQié‘ﬁp’ hre: estabhshed by General Statute 128-30 and may be
amended i W by the Nolﬂl arolina General Assembly. The Town of Dallas employees are required
nfl 15 e 6%0 ftheir com*geynsatlon Employer contributions are actuarially determined and set
:méuaﬂy by the LG $ Boald'q ffrustees, The Town of Dallas’ contractually required contribution
;H for the year endei jme 30,2020, was 9.70% of compensation for law enforcement officers, and
{ 4f'el general em jﬁyees actuarially determined as an amount that, when combined with
emp contributiong]lis expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the

year, Ey& utions tglﬁ'xe pension plan from the Town of Dallas were $269,655 for the year ended
June 30 2 “
!I “!'

Refunds of Codtributions - Town employees who have terminated service as a contributing member of
LGERS may file an application for a refund of their contributions, By State law, refunds to members
with at least five years of service include 4% interest. State law requires a 60 day waiting period after
service termination before the refund may be paid, The acceptance of a refund payment cancels the
individual’s right to employer contributions or any other benefit provided by LGERS,
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Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows
of Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2020, the Town reported an liability of $1,195,871 for its proportionate share of the net
pension lability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2019, The total pension
liability used to calculate the net pensnon liability was determined by ﬂgc,tuaual valuation as of
December 31, 2018, The total pension liability was then rolled f01 eﬁ d to the measurement date of
June 30, 2019 utilizing update procedures incorporating the actlila l ssumptlons The Town’s
proportion of the net pension hablhty was based on a p10_|ect1i 3 0 own s long-term share of
future payroll covered by the pension plan, relative to the pr Jected ful ayroll covered by the
pension plan of all participating LGERS employets, actugg ally detezmmelf L t June 30, 2019
(measurement date), the Town’s proportion was 0. 04379%, which was a de éase of 0 00128% from
its proportion measured as of June 30, 2018. ”ii . i |“]

l.‘J_! slg . i
For the year ended June 30, 2020, the Town 1ecogmzed ;i)e{1sr€l)li1 éxpense of $525 653, At
June 30, 2020, the Town reported deferred outflows of te Q_mces and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions from the following sources:

d[ ” |

‘.““tﬂlii iil’ ;béfé:'red Outflows Deferred Inflows
i

Yy I

'!!

) Gy . of Resources of Resourees
i ix’i“"méﬁ’;'ii;ii"'
Differences between expected and actuﬂ gk’berience "%U" $204,763 $ -
Changes of asssu} ﬁ)‘ﬂ . ' 194,907 -
Net differe Qé betwee tojected and acf@nial garnings
on pens:@i‘xiplan invest énts i i 29,169 -
Changes in ﬁroi) ttion, Iell qli?xff rences betW'een Town
contributions a‘i Ip Qpio J"s’;hare of contributions - 30,670
Town c(mtl lbutmns' ﬁdllsequent {o the measurement date 269,655 -
i Al i ";:l $698,494 $30,670

JH i u‘;f‘
‘;lﬂ% ,655, reported as ?felred ci tflows of resources related to pensions resulting from Town

conl i tlons subsequent to thé measurement date, will be recognized as a decrease of the net pension
liabi i the year ended June 30, 2020 Other amounts reported as deferred inflows of resources
related t lﬁ nsaons Wlﬁf e recognized in pension expense as follows:

géhr ending June 30;

021 $203,330
2022 58,039
2023 109,276
2024 27,524
2025 -
Thereafter -
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Actuarial Assumptions - The total pension liability in the December 31, 2018 actuariai valuation was
determined using the following actoarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the
measurement:

Inflation 3.0 percent

Salary increases 3.50t0 8,10 percg] ﬁ;gncludmg inflation and
ploductmty f ton :

Investment rate of return 7.00 percentf,i teﬁ of pension plan investment
expense incl

i-‘l inflation

The plan currently uses mortality tables that vary by age 1gz—;ndél employée@oup {(i.e., general, law
enforcement officer) and health status (i.e., disabled ard healthy). The curr ’;t moﬁahty rates are
based on published tables and based on s‘rudles th tcovel, mgnsﬁcant portions 6fgp9 13,8, population.
The healthy mortality rates also confain a pmwsuh tq reflect HtPle mortality imptovements,

The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, ZBIQ‘Valuatmn were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the penod January 1, 2010 Hﬂb gh December 31, 2014,

Future ad hoc COLA amoun{s are not chsﬁ‘;qeﬂ eg{ to be substantl\leﬁz automatic and are therefore not
included in the measurement. ,i .i I “ 1
tl ]] |I

The projected long-term mvestment 1etum§ ncﬂ mﬂatton ejésumptmns are developed through review of
current and histor 1ca1 ¢Hb b alkets data, s%l-sude investment research, consultant whitepapers, and
historical perform ice of iny ﬁ{nent strategi 5 Fixed income refurn projections reflect current yields
across the U.S, Tziqs 1y yieldicurve and malkq igxpectations of forward yields projected and
inferpolated for mult ¢ tenq' ; cf ver muitlple yeat horizons, Global public equity return
projections are estabhé q} ti’nouél‘l ha[ﬁsis of the equity risk premium and the fixed income return
plOJectlonaﬁ;(;}thel asset bate ?11es and strategies’ return projections reflect the foregoing and
htst ¥ical data aitaly is. Theé@ ?wjectlons are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of
{un by weightin ?‘ﬁ expectéd; Titure real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage
nlm ;L‘nﬂanoﬁ The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of

1

?/ adding expectq
retl l 01 each major al

“hm»

¢t class as of June 30, 2019 are summarized in the following table:

;'

Long-Term Expected

set. dlass Target Allocation Real Rate of Return

Fl I6d Income 29.0% 1.4%
Globat Equity 42.0% 5.3%
Real Estate 8.0% 4.3%
Alternatives 8.0% 8.9%
Credit 7.0% 6.0%
Inflation Protection 6,0% 4.0%
Total 100%
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The information above is based on 30 year expectations developed with the consulting actuary for the
2018 asset, liability and investment policy study for the North Carolina Retirement Systems, including
LGERS. The long-term nominal rates of return underlying the real rates of return are arithmetic
annualized figures, The real rates of return are calculated from nominal rates by multiplicatively
subtracting a long-term inflation assumption of 3.00%. All rates of return and inflation are annualized.

iHHE
Discount rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pensiop,iigll)iilit; was 7.00%. The projection
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that ¢} f'ibutions from plan members will
be made at the current confribution rate and that contributionﬁ Iﬁ’m léﬁ‘l Jloyers will be made at
statutorily required rates, actuarially determined. Based on these assﬁtlrtj?t‘iﬂns, the pension plan’s
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projecte lﬂ‘ﬁ:re benefit payments of
the current plan members, Therefore, the long-term e‘}:(f:ectédi rate of return w pension plan
investments was applied to all periods of px‘ojectﬂfheneﬁt payments to determ’ifﬂ'f thé total pension
liability. LT il

:E: i 4
Sensitivity of the Town’s proportionate share of the netiﬁ

The following presents the Town’s proportionate share of ;El;:?&

3 : {let pension asset calculated using the
discount rate of 7.00 percent, as well 3s what the Town’s proportionate share of the net pension asset
P T p it p

i
‘:IE iy,
it

o
qq],ated using a J?si p'unt rate that is one percentage point

or net pension liability would be if it W & djl'l]
lower (6.00 percent) or one percentage p;:?int i gﬁ%(ﬁ 00 percen‘i’t) than the current rate;
S TRETERL AT
1“ T i?E?[ 1% Discount 1%
“gili?““” !! " Increase Rate Decrease
it ' f (6.00%) (7.00%) (8.00%)
Town’séﬁ“bgprtionate Lare of the net Bpnsion

$2,735,175  $1,195.871 5(83,603)

i. b.ll ass-.l, l ) X
abilly G M
! RIS
Pensiqllll. g}p}ﬂ;ﬁggpim‘y n iQ‘iﬂsition - Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net
position is av‘ailaﬁyg in the é’e,pi# ately issued Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the
State of North Calﬁ_l”? : 'I;“E?" :
|

!i.»lii“l ‘ | || E

Hi

bl‘“lﬁ‘r‘w Enforce ;ent Officers’ Special Separation Allowance
AE[i i

1. Pla ilﬁ?eﬁﬁg iption

The Totwn administers a public employee retirement system (the “Separation Allowance”), a
single-employer defined benefit pension plan that provides retirement benefits to the Town’s
qualified sworn law enforcement officers under the age of 62 who have completed at least 30
years of creditable service ot have attained 55 years of age and have completed five or more
years of creditable service. The Separation Allowance is equal to .85% of the annual
equivalent of the base rate of compensation most recently applicable to the officer for each
year of creditable service. The retirement benefits are not subject to any increases in salaty or
retirement allowances that may by authorized by the General Assembly. Article 12D of G.S.
Chapter 143 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North
Carolina General Assembly.
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”””“I I

4.,

All full-time [aw enforcement officers are covered by the Separation Allowance, At
December 31, 2018, the Separation Allowance’s membership consisted of?

Retirees receiving benefits 2
Terminated plan members entitled to, but not

receiving, benefits ﬁ”lh
Active plan members ' iilﬁ_ "

i
Total ”{i“ ”2“%3"‘
! J lil
i
Summary of Significant Accounting Pollcles 'Hh L Il”il'l'

Basis of Accounting - The Town has cho 1‘1 to fund the Separation AHQWgnée on a pay as you
go basis. Pension expenditures are made om the Ge galal Fund, which !fé maintained on the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Beneﬂt?‘. ate mcogmzed when due and payable in

accordance with the terms of the plan. i 1;3

The Separation Allowance hés gssets accumulatec“ }m | trust that meet the following criteria
which are outlined in GASB S%{ ﬁemisi 73. 'EH“
T
Actuarial Assumptions l, ol i “hl 41 H;
! i

The entry age g m { cost method1 \vas used in‘the December 31, 2018 valuation. The total
pension liabflity n ; December 31} %018 actuarial valnation was determined using the
foilown}]tgf autual ial as mptions, apphqg to all periods included in the measurement:
i T Hiu i 25pelcent

3,50 to 7.35 percent, including inflation and productivity factor
EI 3.26 percent
M e
The discoun i‘ﬂge is basé;d on the yield of the 8§ & P Municipal Bond 20 Year High Grade Rate
Index as of D aimbel 51, 2018,

i
s ; tality 1ateJ’ a%m based on the RP-2000 mortality tables with adjustments for mortality
im ll;?\fEmenté based on Scale AA.

Inﬁatm'n *i{ L ;

i
alary incre £%
"”llg”‘ﬁjisc w;tRate ii%

Iy

| uﬂ
Contn:i tions

The Town is required by Article 12D of G.S. Chapter 143 to provide these retirement benefits
and has chosen to fund the amounts necessary to cover the benefits earned on a pay as you go
basis through appropriations made in the General Fund operating budget. There were no
contributions made by employees, The Town’s obligation to contribute to this plan is
established, and may be amended by, the North Carolina General Assembly. Administration
costs of the Separation Allowance are financed through investment earnings. The Town paid
$23,539 as benefits came due for the reporting period.
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Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2020, the Town reported a total pension liability of $367,852. The total pension
liability was measured as of December 31, 2019 based on a December 31, 2018 actuarial
valuation, The total pension liability was then rolled forward W ’I{h,e{ measurement date of
December 31, 2019 utilizing update procedures incot| ponatu;é the aétuarial assumptions. For
the year ended June 30, 2020, the Town recognized pet F‘Txpense of $9,318,

"3 DefelrLd Qutflows  Deferred Inflows

“'i{“, L ofRe 6u5:ces of Resources
.* !
Differences between expected and actual exper[ténce ; $ 7, 463 ilt [ $77,554
Changes of assumptions e ) i 18,640 12,043
Town benefit payments and plan administr ative éxpense .i‘ "
made subsequent to the measurement date i i'h - -
Total g h $26,103

;H 26,10 $89.597

i l u”
$-0- paid as benefits came due ‘.‘B ‘ ‘ﬂggant to the meas 1éh{ent date have been reported as

deferred outflows of resources. (Dthet mQ‘fmtﬁ reported as deferred outflows and deferred
inflows of resources related to peﬁ?mns wlll ity leiﬁf?gmzed in the pension expense as follows:

Sar e ‘ i
Y Wlm }g !!i‘

1

20214t ! f l $(14,178)

2l e

2024 ]I il]] ili! ’fmhilihu s : (17:725)

;m| Ih(r 3% fg (2,459)

l’ h&%&:ffci i ‘E ~
i

H
‘I{ h $-0- paid as’ :%‘ efits cal e due and $-0- of administrative expenses subsequent to the
J I“'l measurement dgfe are réported as deferred outflows of resources.

u' .frtzvu‘y of the Town'’s total pension liability to changes in the discount rate. The following
the 'I‘(':wn s total pension 11ab1hty calculated using the discount rate of 3.26 percent, as

well J Ja% the Town’s total pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount

rate tha s one percentage point lower (2.26 percent), or one percentage point higher

(4.26 pelcent) than the current rate:

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(2.26%) {3.26%) (4.26%)
Total pension liability $393,009 $367,852 $344,737
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Schedule of Changes in Total Pension Liability
Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance

Beginning balance $390,041
Service cost 14,630
Interest on the total pension liability 13,769

Changes of benefit terms -

Differences between expected and actual experience in the El””“'l.

measurement of the total pension liability i (36,008)
Changes of assumpfions or other inputs il [ :“ 9,019
Benefit payments 'l!l‘, I“ Lo (23,539)
Other changes i -

Ending balance of the total pension liability ‘};Filnt h
£ '

K :w"'.
The plan currently uses mottality tables tb,é?.:tfvary by age and health sta&i “(11:6., disabled and
healthy). The current mortality rates are baged on publiﬁl@ed tables and based on studies that

cover significant portions of the U, S. popui‘ait_ipn ‘The healthy mortality rates also contain a
provision to reflect future mortality improvemé‘ﬁtﬁi{t
3

T 1

i
The actuarial assumptions used i ;-ﬁ?e December 31, 5&)‘ Igii‘ﬂqluation were based on the results
of an actuarial experience studyi oK ﬁt{f‘liti;quriod January l; QbIO through December 31, 2014,

fu ‘.r

i L T
" lesm. fw ot
i TR T
g
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Total Expense, Liabilities, and Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions

Following is information related to the proportionate share and pension expense for all pension

plans:
LGERS i ilh;, LEOSSA Total

Pension expense $ 525 653 il "' 9,318 $ 534,971
Pension liability 1,195, 1{1 367,852 1,563,723
Proportionate share of the net pension liability 0, 04} A)( l n/a
Deferred outflows of resources !l ' !fﬁ ;

Differences between expected and actual experience l,l‘ , 204 763 ‘ih !{'17;,463 212,226

Changes of assumptions q 194,907 "1r$,: 0 . 213,547

i

Net difference between projected and actual ;! A, ; '} ;

earnings on plan investments B 169 - 29,169
Changes in proportion, and differences between, '
contributions and proportionate share of
contributions - -
Benefit payments and administrative c&# ' ;
subsequent to the measurement date  }; ||“ IP* _ 269 Gﬁg . 269,655
}‘[ "} ”;E INE 1
. R T
Deferred inflows of resources i i“

Differences between ?]m) cted and actual el{?eilence g - 77,554 77,554
Changes of assumat U - 12,043 12,043
Net difference bétween pr }ed and actual 'l
carnings on; bl Himvestmel I - - -
Changes in piopom anc% i eipies betwgen
contributions and plL}# tionate shate! blf;
cantl’zbu]mms ('. l 30,670 - 30,670

Supplemer{tq Retir en‘lhﬂt Income Pian for Law Enforcement Officers

‘|

] l The Town contributes to the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan (the

, a defined confribution pension plan administered by the Departiment of State Treasurer
an:d oﬂ‘l‘rustees The Plan provides retirement benefits to law enforcement officers

emp cl

by'the Town, Atticle 5 of G.S. Chapter 135 assigns the authotity to establish and
amend heﬁt provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. The Supplemental
Retire ent Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers is included in the Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North Carolina. The State’s CAFR includes
the pension trust fund financial statements for the Internal Revenue Code Section 401(k) plan
that includes the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers. That
report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service
Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410, or by calling (919) 9815454,

Funding Policy - Article 12F of G.S. Chapter 143 requires the Town to contribute, each month
an amount equal to five percent of each officer’s salary, and all amounts contributed are vested
immediately. The law enforcement officers may make voluntary contributions to the plan,

The Town made confributions of $30,74 1 for the reporting year. No amounts wete forfeited.
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d.

il

2.

i

;i

Iy

§

Supplemental Retivement Income Plan for Employees Other than Law Enforcement
Officers

Plan Description - All full-time employees of the Town can elect to participate in the
Supplemental Retirement Income Plan, a defined contribution ;?lan.

i,
Funding Policy - The Town voluntarily contributes, each 1 mﬂth, an amount equal to four
percent of each employee’s salary, and all amounts convﬂ; ‘ d are vested immediately. Also,
the employees may make voluntary contributions to tj}'é plal’l-.lrmhi ‘

o il
The Town made contributions of $103,723 fo;‘} ‘tiihtg'epbrting yearl.‘ lﬂm?mounﬁs were forfeited.
A ! HHIN

h e,

Other Employment Benefits i f ‘ "im} P
aprhih i !

DAL i f

%

The Town has elected to provide death bezigmg to g;ﬁpigyees through the Death Benefit Plan
for members of the Local Governmental Emplé'j/;%'efs’ Retirement System (the Death Benefit
Plan), a multiple-employer, State-administered, cc}éﬁ'ﬁharing plan funded on a one-year term
cost basis. The beneficiaries Bg -Jsl;upse employees wﬁ&! lic,in active service after one year of
contributing membetship in threé ?é)‘f’sltﬁT, or who die wi h:!’ti*l 80 days after retirement or
termination of service and have 3¢ leas 56“‘1‘5; Zyciqll‘_of contributing membership service in the
System at the time of death, are éii{;iblgifbr dblat betiefits. Lump sum death benefit payments
to beneficiaries are equal to the em ]o’ﬂree’s 12 lljéizest months’ salary in a row during the 24
months p1'i01;;t¢>f ﬁ!\,‘é Ei ployee’s deati'}, but the benefit may not exceed $50,000, or be less than
$25,000. .b}cause ai sath benefit payments are made from the Death Benefit Plan, and not by

the Tgwh;‘ '!t;hL Town does not determih_ig ¢he number of eligible participants. The Town has no

liability beyq ? the p @@Z{ of monhly contributions. The contributions to the Death Benefit

Plan cannot b Q patated’ &/ee‘n the post-employment benefit amount and the other benefit
:;,f.*?h;f}' s, ,C_ontri{)htiq s are determined as a percentage of monthly payroll based upon rates
" estab is]i{ejc'ii ;':mnuall()} »{;& .‘tlhe State. Separate rates are set for employees not engaged in law

enﬁ:arcelm'a’nfﬂ'g 1d for la\ﬂ%ﬁﬁforcement officers. The Town considers these contributions to be
¥
i

immaterial. | H
1, hits several deferred outflows of resources. Deferred outflows of resources is

”ﬁ’zﬁ

iy
The?ﬂ )
compl{il)gz J

iferred Out st and Inflows of Resources
§

d of the following;

o

Amount
Contributions to pension plan in the current fiscal year $269,655
Differences between expected and actual experience 212,226
Changes of assumptions 213,547
Net difference between projected and actual 29,169
Changes in proportion, and differences between, employer contributions
and proportionate share of contributions -
Charge on refunding -
Total $724.597
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Deferred inflows of resources at year-end is comprised of the following:

Statement of General Fund
Net Position Balance Sheet

Taxes receivable, less penalties (General Fund) }giBlh,% - $ 32,949
Prepaid taxes - -
Mottgage receivable (CDGB Grant Fund) !;fi”i - 230,000
Other fees receivable t “m;, - 60,156
Changes in assumptions f h m 7,554 -
Differences between expected and actual expel‘lbnce ‘ 1%{?43 -
Changes in proportion, and differences between ,H?;., f

employer contributions and p10p01t10ngﬁt share of | N ”ii““‘“

contributions DRI i 30.670 -
Total "'l W AT $120.267 $323.105

13

| i

] t

. i

3. Commitments i 1
\il

U t ! 1“ By
In 2008, the Town entered mtoia gZO)*pv;‘nﬁy-yem agleeﬁient with Duke Energy for the
purchase of wholesale electric péwei whgch‘ 8 Townsthen distributes to individual
residential, commercial, and mdué al, réfall accdllﬁfs Rates charged to the Town under the
terms of the a ent are tentatlve}}?f set each yedr in advance, based on market forces,
expected d mﬁmﬂ& thon Duke’s overall expenses incurred in generating such power. The
Town carlll gosmvely pact the ove1a|l cost by the contractually-detailed generating of power
at “peaﬂ tuhqs duun ‘the year. At thé donclusion of each contract year, the pulchase power
costs are c‘tme p ‘to Ie o0 factual costs, as well as the Town’s efficiency in peak—shavmg
gengration”, 1 ‘{ féent yeats, ]ﬁailas has received substantive, year-end, “true-up” payments to
T b‘)ﬂénéé agamst thidit xpenses otherwise incurred. While historically, the rates charged by
;gi' Duke havé nded 1ipy}'qld year-over-year in a manner slightly exceeding the rate of inflation,
IIM this year’s 11 é increa %as moderated due to the continued low costs of natural gas; and
ot ” m' such trend col contmue for several more years.
Ill

'H August 2019, the Town received cost estimates for Duke Coal Ash Recovery. The Town of

is a HLlesale customer of Duke Energy, Due to a major Duke Energy coal ash spill,
the B ,;s required to make annual coal ash payments to Duke Energy for coal ash recovery
costs, he estimated cost to the Town of Dallas is $1,491,353. To recover the costs, amounts
will b added to the monthly regular Duke Energy bill. The amount recovered was $129 747
for the year ended June 30, 2020, The coal ash recovery charge was $150,000 for the year
ended June 30, 2020,
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Risk Management

The Town is exposed to various liabilities and risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage fo,
and/or destruction of assets; as well as for errors and omissions; injuries to employees or
citizens; and resulting from natural disasters. To protect against such threat of loss, the Town
participates in a self-funded, risk-financing pool administereq glp‘jq the North Carolina League of
Municipalities (NCLM), as well as purchasing umbreila ¢ jlérage for general liability and auto
and property insurance from a regional, private brokera gr . The NCLM Pool provides the
Town with workers’ compensation coverage up to s ﬁftlltcnr}ﬂ litnits, and then the pool is
reinsured through commercial carriers for single ocourrence claithis in excess of $300,000 to
the maximum allowed by State law. The Towq:ﬂa,s exXperienced nt(?iﬁl nificant reductions in
insurance coverage in the prior year, and settéd claifns have not exbéf ded coverage in any of
the past three fiscal years. iii%ll . ";{ j};"

RIS i, A '
The Town does not carry flood insurance, Bég‘;aufe‘t‘ﬁgrg are no known Town-owned or

t

LENIE . .
controlled assets existing within an identified fl64d, ‘p!am as determined by State or Federal
i

o

designation. _ : iili'
Y Uy,
In accordance with G.S.1 59~2'$;; ti’i!éi' gwn’s employee 5;\L)ﬁ6 are authorized to have custody of
$100 or more in Town funds, oﬂi cceéI? t‘éi H‘p n‘inventoi'ies, as well as the Town’s designated
Finance Officer, are each requirét to be, per 1*1‘%1: shpe-bonded through a commercial surety
bond. The Finance Officer is indﬂ"gi}t‘n’él!y bc.ndé;,él1 for $50,000, while employees with custody
of funds, or 9‘;;:1&4,55%? inventories, a:l?‘ covered under a blanket policy against crime, fraud, or
theft. {i" l !"

i e

}f{!!
4! i

i
ih
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5. Long-Term Obligations

a.

Capital Feases

The Town has entered into an agreement to lease vehicles. The lease agreement qualifies as
capital leases for accounting purposes and, therefore, has bee ghq,,q:ded at the present value of
the future minimum lease payments as of the date of their ila,tﬁaptlon

i
The agreement was executed on September 10, 2018 tebl ease PThmles and requires 60 monthly
payments of varying amounts. n 'll‘h

i! ‘hi k
The following is an analysis of the assets recotded urider capital leaél%iqt June 30, 2020:

K1k
”i$ i., :;[ i, Accumultued Net Book
Classes of Property iiCosgti'’ Degreciétion Value
Vehicles and motorized equipment Eﬁ@(ﬁ,OS $38.011 $262.043
Total §300*b$ﬁ $38.011 $262,043

b,
The future minimum lease oblig tié)n nd the net p;esllijlt;\}alue of these minimum lease
payments as of June 30, 2020 V\lé}e ag oilbws] :

N

Wy
Year Ending June 30: I ﬁi ’i i

2021 b ! 56,029
2022 |i“”“””” ll;.‘ ’ 56,029
2023 s{l' I “ Ty 56,029
2024 ¢ ;!: 56,029
2025 I’l | !H]]w it 25,788
Total 1 mlmmun‘{ léé e paymel L 249,903
. ;Leéss}amqunt repléq%;utimg inter est 17.918

J

‘ Present val diof the nii um lease payments $231.985
r ! !ﬁ 231,700
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b, Installment purchases consist of the following at June 30, 2020:

Serviced by the General Fund:
$1,500,000 loan for a fire station, with principal and interest payments of $51,141, due
semi-annually in April and October, at an annual interest rate of 4.33%, through 2033,
secured by the fire station building, i ”h
NS
$349,944 loan for a fire truck, with principal and interest payment ‘52‘ $31,325, due
annually in July, at an annual interest rate of 3.914%, through ; “ ecured by fire truck.

$235,000 loan for a solid waste truck, with principal and mtelest paymentﬁ f $27,171,
due annually in September, at an annual interest 1ate oﬁ 7 3% through 207 ?n N
secured by a solid waste truck, 5 ;
e i lj
$146,597 loan for a sanitation truck, with prmdipiql ;and mteteﬂ ayments of $26 gl? due
annually in October, at an annuatl interest rate of 3 3?% th;qmg | 2025,
secured by a sanitation truck. i ;w
Rt
$9,800 loan for tasers, with pr mcnpqh f$1,960, due annuaﬁ??mlune with 0% interest
through 2024, secured by tasers, ri] i ”M]I' i b
it
i [1HNY " 1
Total serviced by the General Fund §; i p !|i; lm‘ i i .

Serviced by the Wa d Sewer Fund: [ W
$3,600,000 loan; {fé tl% nd sewer capltei | projects, w1th principal and interest

payments of $Q25 367, dljs annually in Jusb, at an annual interest rate of 3.59%

through 20?2’4,3,3 cured by bater lines and ot}iéi personal property financed with the proceeds,

Total serviced by “{'&%‘ NYétet“iL{i %éwa% Fund
RUilne
1‘8&1!‘}!363 by f lEEectuc gi d:
$132 265 loan f? samtatl wtmck with principal and interest payments of $23,924, due
i;l t h annually in Oct . , at an anhual interest rate of 2,39%, through 2025,
’ ]I I l(3(:uted by a sanittion trutk.
i !

$2 l! X 83 loan f01 hicles, with principal and interest payments of $45,584, due

annﬂ ;nm I uiy; t an annual interest rate of 3.75% thr ough 2020, secured by vehicles,

Tl

Total ser vn“:d by the Electric Fund

Total mstailment purchases
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$1,024,531

211,365

101,652

146,597

7.840

1,491,985

2.616125

2,616,125

132,265

43,941
176,206

$4.284.316
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Annual debt service requirements to maturity for long-term obligations are as follows:

Dircct Placement Installment Purchase

Principal
Governmental activities:
2021 $ 303
2022 13 fog7
2023 42,057
2024 ;1 1 47,122
2025 ,rif’ i p446
e N
- *‘11 e i
Total governmental activities e 1,491,98g'§i:|! ]
Iii b wl i
Business-type activities: o Hp ‘ti?hl.r‘ ) l
2021 iy et 226,153
2022 Eiim 188,504
2023 W, *aim 195,016
2024 Wi i 201,756
2025 I -JHH;;;;W T 208,731
2026-2030 ' i 0 1,057,958
2031-2035 oo "M{}H* 714,217
2036-2040 I }iz“ Rt -
Total busmessuf:% lq ities !{ 2,792.332
| T} i
Total . ”!“*l ‘!ifr $ 4284316

e
i |
At June 30, 2020,“5 Ea; wn}s ;ljé;g{l

ebt malgm is $28,069,326.
" ,ngl i!l;}t '

L

56

Interest

$ 58952
54,168
49,199
44,134
38,679

122,064
22,720
389,916

96,444
90,788
84,276
77,536
70,559
242,804
85,485

747.893

$1,137.809
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June 34, 2020
Changes in Long-Term Liabilities
Current
Balance Balance Portion of
June 30, 2019 Increnses Decreases June 30, 2020 Balance
Governmental activities:
Compensated absences $ 109,641 $ - $ 26,584 i”i $ 83,057 $ -
Net pension liability (LEQ) 390,041 1,350 23, 53? g” hy, 367,852 -
Net pension liability (LGERS) 499,448 39,015 ”I 538,463 -
Direct placement instaliment lf }6”
purchase 1,440,689 156,397 ) 5 1G !l Iy 1,491,985 132,303
Capitalized leases 40,444 184,302 ii ' ‘121,78 -. H ) ! 202,963 42.804
it t, i !
i
Total governmental activities $ 2,480,263 §381!06_t} i $177,006 %‘68}4 3;21 $175,107
i g s
Business-type activities: o RIS 'li‘fi,, A
Water and Sewer Fund i Nt
Compensated absences $ 58903 $ - m‘i“:ﬁ 537 $ 58366 $ -
Net pension liability (L.GERS) 282,664 43,470 1] ;,l' - 126,134 .
Direct placement installment “l s h ”ILI K
purchase 2,801,025 {l‘{ iii! . - 1 41%0() 2,616,125 161,448
Capitalized leases \E'] H 29,022 6,185
Water and Sewer Fund
long-term liabilities mm” 3,029,647 167,633
i
[
Electric Fund EH!';
Compensated absences’ it ‘f::l‘ N 47,673 -
Net pension liability (LGERS}“ 331,274 -
Direct placement msta{lmem
purchase AR 176,206 64,705
i it LHIRRE ‘ I
i
Electric nd l‘l“ﬁ’
Loﬂé ;’I habllltlcs 493,984 176,436 115,267 555,153 64,705
Business actl\li!y“ ng-ternt ‘
liabilities ! $.3.630,576 $255,598 $307.374 $3.584.800 $232,338

i“
Hsliililhp

o
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1.

June 30, 2020
C. Interfund Balances and Acfivity
Transfers to/from other funds at June 30, 2020 consist of the following:
From the Electric Fund to T.O.P. T.LE.R. - to fund economic development $ 160,143
From the Electric Fund to the Capital Project Fund - to fund capital @ﬁﬁ@cts 79,857
From the Electric Fund fo the General Fund - payment in lieu of t R 895,733
!I‘ “““' $1,135,733
Transfers are used to: (1) move unrestricted revenues toj ﬁnaﬁqe vauouJ ‘pi ggiams that the
government must account for in other funds in accmdance with budgetaiy \fathouzatlons including
amounis provided as subsides or matching funds for var ious grant programs, (2? Rmve funds from the
fund with collection authorization to other fundsl{o stablllze iﬁtes 'II
i ’ ii ;E ' I a
D. Net Investment in Capital Assets ‘!'lilggf
L
i?!‘t " "GYovernmental Business-type
Capital assets 'li“f}”;u..h §6]184,424 $14,153,206
Less: long-term debt j.g '“”Efi%””z (1,694,9491 (2,821.353)
fhl i cm]u” i +$4,489.476 $11,331,853
N
E. "] '

iﬁ
i i

The following, géhgdu le pro {hes managemellt qlld citizens with information on the portion of the
General Fund ba!an e [hat i 11 ;m;allable for applop: iation:

Fund Balance “”””” i

| 1 fing
TotaL’ %’ng» balance léjénfnal Fund $3,171,060
Lest!
!inventm ies { il é ”‘. v 312
Nll l tabilization by %%e Statute’ 319,964
( ets-Powell Bil ' 47,332
&ﬂ Safety 203,289
App 3 iiated Fung Balance in 2021 Budget 430,842
Remaif S; und: alance | 2,169,321
Jointly Gover ng Organizations

The Town, in conjunction with nine counties and seventy-four other municipalities, established the

Centralina Council of Governments (the Council). The participating governments established the Council

to coordinate various funding received from federal and State agencies, Each participating government
appoints one member to the Council’s governing board. The Town paid membership fees of $1,164 to
the Council during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020.
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1V,

VL

Related Party Transactions

The Public Works Director wotks part-time for one of the Town’s vendors. The vendor provides
plumbing and electrical services for the Town. The Town paid $12,826 in services during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2020. As of June 30, 2020, there were no outstanding amounts due to the vendor,

i“““‘)

Summary Disclosure of Significant Contingencies I
;” !!
Federal and State Assisted Programs I m

The Town has received proceeds from several Federal and S*I;ate gvants Pel 164 ? audits of these grants
are required, and certain costs may be questioned as not bémg appnopuate expendltmes under the grant
agreements, Such audits could result in the refund of gxant monies to the grantor a‘é icles Management
believes that any required refunds will be immater 1dl ,NQ ptows ﬁn! has been made j 'the accompanying
financial statements for the refund of grant monies. i”i‘i:l i
i
I

zil ”}
Management has evaluated subsequent evé ltéi*h on 2020, the date on which the
financial statements were available to be xssuied iﬁiif‘”gghe period ﬁom the end of the year, and through
this date, the following event occurred that 1et1uue§ teco n1,t1¢151. o1 disclosure in these financial
statements, $

i
il |
ggy,w.mﬂﬁf;l ‘“ 1

The spread of the' Comn1 Vu us D‘l] ?gﬁ? COVID 19) has been deemed a worldwide pandemic. The
COVID-19 pandemic has ;éigrl éfill{ ¢ffe¢ts on global economic markets, supply chains, businesses
and comm}mﬂt {:IS“lAS a 1esu[ﬁ, qumestlc and international equity markets have experienced significant
ﬂuctu 16115 The' Impa on thé;’,l:(?wn of Dallas, North Carolina is not reflected in the financial
stategients for the yeai eg led June!; f 12020, since the full impact of COVID-19 is unknown and cannot

hen foably estimated Wi’

mlilui “

Significant Effects of Subsequent Events i

i“'

n]llun‘ !
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TOWN OF DALLAS, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Changes in Total Pension Liability
Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separafion Allowance
Last Four Fiscal Years

2020 2019 018 017
Beginning balance $390,041 $466,520 $418,375 $412,459
Service cost 14,630 19,987 16,223 19,207
Interest on the total pension liability 13,769 Eg{ié{lﬁ.’((} 15,695 14,397

Changes of benefit terms
Differences between expected and actual experience in

the measurement of the total pension Hability (3§ Ok Q 872) 15,851

Changes of assumptions or other inputs | 9,919 3,;?? 23,915 (9,350)

Benefit payments I(Q3 539) (23,589) i (23,539)  (18,338)

Other changes .‘ - ’1"r'1, i .

. ; T il oy

Ending balance of the total pension liability dj‘;, $367,852  $390.941 $166,520 $418,375

i = e
!' '

il ‘{ !,N'

The amounts presented for the fiscal year were determined as of the prior fJ Sc-?al year ending December 31,
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TOWN OF DALLAS, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Total Pension Liability as a Percentage of Covered Payroll
Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance
Last Four Fiscal Years

2020 019 2018

$367,852  $390,041
581,161 674,988 623,345
63.30% lisyws% 74.84%
il

;11!"'”” m“h

Total pension liability
Covered payroll
Total pension liability as a percentage of covered payroll

Notes to the schedules:
The Town of Datlas has no assets accumulated in a trust that meets the c: jteﬁ‘na

!il'
in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement 73 to pay related benefits. v ;lli!
! I
;;H‘::. e '}I]z'
ERRRE R A
5, ooalt
L
i
! “[” i
1 i H 1
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$466,520 $418,375

666,556
62.77%
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TOWN OF DALLAS

Page 1 of 6
General Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019)
2020
“Wgr:ance
“! Pasitive 2019
Budget ctuaU (Neaatlve) Actual
Revenues: fif N " '!« '
Ad valorem taxes: ., 'l[“ii;:
Current year $1,223,218.+° $1 356, 302 $ 13'35,{?'.';4.. v $§1,159,715
Prior years 756‘ 10;: 9,4@‘?‘ 15,021
State board assessed 23, 400 g ,ai‘i Ry (23,300) 23,752
Interest and penalties 3,777 1 4,406 629 5,252
Total 1,251,145 1,§a9;925 119,780 _ 1,203,739
i pL
Other taxes and licenses: !f ”” b
Privilege licenses 's& 3, 100 r“n; -~ 150 50 4,125
Motor vehicle licenses ff 3, 00 i 159 630 6,630 35,030
Alcohol beverage tax i“”!m”! 52,000 : 20,761 (1,239) 20,956
Total 1 ! 53}}100 63,541 5,441 60,111
B it
Unrestricted intergover nmental’ ﬂen}; %mm; i
Local option sales tax ‘ 450 968 476,981 26,013 462,719
Hold harmless distl‘liﬁuﬂoq ':;i%g ] 78,615 52,849 (25,766) 73,422
Utility fra (}HISG tax ,Hb ‘I Iiiiii" 158,796 153,833 (4,963) 157,706
Excise ;aﬁg priped natural ﬁ 10,916 13,819 2,903 17,063
Sales tax onyzél‘ communicatio ‘ 49,840 38,209 (11,631) 47,008
Sales tax on Vi§ rogrammirn 16,252 15,000 (1,252) 15,700
Solid waste d1sp0 é’ W 3,699 3,678 21 3,387
Total ﬁlll“”, 769,086 754,370 (14,716) 777,005
Restricted intergovernméntal revenues:
Powell Bill street aid allocation 131,307 129,569 (1,738) 131,227
Powell Bill investment earnings 1,240 3 (1,237) 829
Covid-19 grant funds - 61,577 61,577 -
Drug forfeiture revenue 2,500 - (2,500) (2,443)
Grant revenue 127,100 - (127,100) -
Federal and state grants 61,750 - (61,750) -
Total 323,897 191,150 (132,747) 129,612
cont,

64




TOWN OF DALLAS

Page 2 of 6
General Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2020
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019)
2020
‘,IVgnance
Positive 2019
Budget Ac tu I “H]II] {Negative) Actual
h

Revenues (continued): " {!. l h
Permits and fees: i M "!tm,

Zoning fees $ 11, 000‘1” $ 13 924 lQ?ﬁ}m 13,252

RN i, "

Sales and services: ‘m%g‘ 4 ‘:i i h !

Arrest fees 1,850 1080 (571) 1,584

Refuse collection fees o 346,008 ulﬁ 64 (3,744) 338,725

Recreation fees and concessions ‘ll, “59 396 368 it (17,428) 49,978

Other I "1hios0. 9,787 (4,164) 14,502
Total '&21 2041= 395,298 (25,906) __404,788

il

Investment earnings i“””mm léﬂ 188 84,195 (22,993) 117,314
Miscellaneous: _ ”lhll l“ h| -

Sale of property a,“ { ‘, ‘iﬁ“ m 20 000 22,993 2,993 193,730

Returned check rovepue i” ! i1 65 1,230 (435) 1,410

Customer bille; ¢k, ‘{l; 1,450 821 (629) 1,453

ABC wholg kﬂc dlStllbuthhi i "‘ I 26,219 22,519 (3,700) 18,562

Contribyﬂ;% ‘r rom Courthoung undatl“ - 35,779 35,779 -

Other IE]] W 15,100 3,926 (11,174) 3,056
Total | ’”“lir | 64,434 87,268 22,834 __ 218211

it i
Total revenues hﬂ!;’#“m "J 3,006,054 2,960,671 {45,383) 2,924,033
Rl cont.
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TOWN OF DALLAS

Page 3 of 6

General Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019)

Expenditures:
General government:
Governing body:
Salaries and employee benefits
Other operating expenditures

Administrative:
Salaries and employee benefits
Professional services
Maintenance and repairs
Other operating expenditures
Capital outlay

Public buildings: “;HH[HH

Community development
Salaries and employeg: Heiﬂbfjts
Other operating expenditured

Capital outlay

l,]!!l 5:}“_4‘.%%.‘
Courthous ;i o
Professlé a services i
Maintenat L‘@ d repairs
Other operati g jPendltures i

. Capital outlay lt}“‘ {
llit"“

Total general govelnmeht

2020

”IV@ riance
Positive 2019

__ﬂlﬂﬂ”%“mil\le (Negative) Actual

Budget

H[} 148 $ 63372

§ 64,849 §° g“63 701
12,756, 5,615 ,.1411; . 5,759
77,608L:, 69;316 8,289 69,131
‘!‘ ! HJ T
::!‘“f! , l’H

80468 11175208 5,170 67,163
" 16,746 My xlg 746 - 14,670
Wll0,832 I 95 " 15,939 23,811

%; 53 959, 108, it 15,949 105,441
h, 14,6050 ]i;,;. L 41,949 (27,344) 14,720
2;:35,610 1275,896 9,714 225,806

i'.

90‘&1@ 72,578 17,832 78,649
100948 53,807 47,141 78,417
- ‘:«~-10,882 10,882 - (23,832)

202,240 137,266 64,974 133,233
7,723 6,905 818 4,978

16,686 20,514 (3,828) 23,093

19,635 16,711 2,924 18,036

14,430 8,925 5,505 -

58,474 53,056 5,418 46,107

623,929 535,534 88,395 474,277
cont.
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TOWN OF DALLAS

Page4 of 6
General Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019)
2020
i {llVariance
iff Posmve 2019
Expenditures (continued): Budget ctua!i ” ” {Negative) Actual
Police: ‘ . ’
Salaries and employee benefits $1,230,892 $ } 13‘7 975 $ i 1 92,917 $1,111,019
Maintenance and repairs 44,340 k. 41, 735 1 1605 48,153
Other operating expenditures 144, 3701 146,219 ( $l 9?' 96,141
Capital outlay 147 733; 267660 (119,997) 80,061
1,567,337 '1,593 591 (26,254) 1,335,373
Fire: : ah
Salaries and employee benefits Wy, 171,029 i;’fﬁ@tﬂ) 689 157,353
Maintenance and repairs :I{“ 170 622 76 gOIu (6,298) 52,836
Other operating expenditures ’98 229 82, 4 7 15,792 73,888
Capital outlay i\ 66, 373" ¢l|,, . 42,587 23,786 41,560
406753 372,283 33,970 325,636
m!l”l”]l” . ‘ig ‘
Total public safety &”!i ”! 1,97 35590 1,965,875 7,715 1,661,010
“i g ﬂ_:}”;
fsponation: "'“iflla Ry 0
Street maintenance ’i“h | i
Salaries and ;:mpibi’é% bq efits ‘%th 205,526 164,820 40,706 167,442
Mainten qée and repairs- ;;[ ‘ § i, it 35,464 5,428 30,036 19,796
Street, i J 111 ‘. I 60,020 47,945 12,075 55,642
Contracte F iices ‘ 7,150 5,786 1,364 384
Other operatlhg‘? penditures 44,984 31,869 13,115 20,852
. Capital outlay Th i ' 98,516 38,902 59,614 36,889
Powell Bill expendit L ;"' 131,307 110,788 20,519 108,021
ﬁ“' 582,967 405,537 177,430 409,025
Environmental protectidﬁ:
Solid waste:
Salaries and employee benefits 212,506 180,696 31,810 130,871
Maintenance and repairs 50,581 48,266 2,315 62,652
Other operating expenditures 43,508 18,759 24,749 40,051
Capital outlay 148,697 148,603 94 -
Tipping fees 90,300 81,756 8,544 88,492
545,592 478,080 67,512 322,065
cont.
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TOWN OF DALLAS

Page S of 6
General Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019)
2020
${3|Yarlance
;jii Pasitive 2019
Expenditures (continued): Budget ctua fj ll (Negative) Actual
Cultural and recreational: }iﬁ ” ll. \
Parks and recreation: 4 ! iih
Salaries and employee benefits $ 150,622 9§ Hl 120, 219 {éj 803 $ 119,688
Maintenance and repairs 46,482 - 41,694 ,,;’7 28 It 45,553
Operating expenditures 170, 829 13 1@80 39, 4 123,857
Capital outlay 7, 000" ” 4, 16 43 167 -
374933 il i300 726 74,207 289,099
Debt service:
Debt service - principal ‘m’ }5 027 (1‘883 (11,856) 133,567
Debt service - interest !‘] 59, 640, 65,145 (5,505) 64,165
1174 66’?1m§]|i i:..192,028 (17,361) 197,732
R
Total expenditures iﬂmilllj“ 4 217’5 678 3,877,780 397,898 3,353,207
Revenues over (under) expé‘r&dltuws ii {1,269 !624) (917,109) 352,515 (429,175)
i H i’
i i s] i . .
Other Financing Soqu:_ces (Useui !“,;: Hi ! |§t, i
Proceeds from qapltla”ﬁnancmg E‘Hl'! : 146,597 340,699 194,102 40,444
Appropriated flind balance:! || JLE! ‘~l i 238,294 - (238,294) -
Tlansfels ( from other fund8: “l
LESA Fun ] ll ; ] (11,000) - 11,000 -
T.0.P. TIERtﬁ ram - - - (191,563)
Blecttic Fund hiﬁ%ﬂl r 895,733 __ 895733 : 915,733
' |
Total other financing sou (Jses {uses) 1,269,624 1,236,432 (33,192) 764,614
cont,
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TOWN OF DALLAS
Page 6 of 6, cont,
General Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019)

2020
“ ][Yarmnce
;;li Pisitive 2019
Budget ctua f] (Nefzatwe) Actual
Revenues and other financing sources 1 ' ; h
over (under) expenditures and other ‘“‘ “ . Il]ﬁ’s
financing uses $ $ 319 322§ 314);3:2%_," $ 335439
| ‘i;u L
i
= |
Fund balances, beginning, as previously reported ‘=“$2 85}1‘ 738 ! $2,352,848
Proior period adjustment 7.&?.’. 163,451
Fund balances, beginning, restated L 2, §3E 738 2,516,299
Revenues and other financing sources *mlzss! HH*U "
over (under) expenditures and other I !?-‘, i !
financing uses i‘!‘l | 335,439
R
Fund balances, ending i;z!m””“ t]i M $2,851,738
ne ' |

{!
iy
Y
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GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENT i FUNDS
;ﬁ “h

Storm Water Fund, This fund is used to acé upt for fees collected, and monies
spent, in connection with the Town’s storm wiiﬁfirun -off,

i [l
Trade Street Intersection Pl ecih}’l{‘lus fund is used to account for the construction
work at Trade Street Inter sechon ,%u 435 l l”

i E

“T.0.P, T.LE, }ML argeted Op ns Pr ov1dmg Tangible Investment in Economic
Revitalizat JQ“ hls fund i 1s an economic development program funded and
mamtamﬁ; by the vn to offer lmil}ted but targeted, public economic assistance
in sup[ior of private sector investmient in assets needed to spur job creation,
business sectoﬁ[ g Tl :Md leerall economic vitality.

D
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TOWN OF DALLAS

Combining Balance Sheet
Non-Major Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Storm Capital Total Nonmajor
Water Project T.O.P, TLER. Governmental
Fund Fund Program Funds
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 260,520 $ 228,651 13”“1,549,550 $ 1138721
Accounts receivable, net 30,012 ‘ai 30,012
i mi o
Total assets $ 290,532 $ 22:81651 ! 1;‘3" 649,550 $ 1168733
Lo i
N TR a{”t-
N .g*}‘ t {”E:,
Liabilities and Fund Balances: e i,
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 1,5{69,% .3 ‘.i . $ ‘n:lmp* $ 1,569
RIS i, A
Total liabilities 569 i, i . 1,569
i 5;;9
Fund balances: by '!5“‘
Restricted: {li“:!i 0 “!l!. o
Assigned: h ""h ]”ff-l*u,. .{413
Storm Water 1 asg Syt v : 288,963
Capital Project I I*’Ei{}ﬁi’s,ésl - 228,651
Top Tier Program }MHEUH l hii“ - - 649,550 649,550
l
Total fund balances i” ! %;l “ 28$i &GB 228,651 649,550 1,167,164
S
H ‘mll?H'li’ $ 200532 § 228651 $ 649550 §  L,168733

Total liabilities and fund bahnccs ‘ ? ”

o ,gall“lh“ fig,
i
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TOWN OF DALLAS

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Non-Major Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Revenues:

Storm water fees
Investment earnings
Total revenues

Expenditures:

Salaries and employee benefits
Supplies

Contracted services

Repairs and maintenance

Other operating expenditures
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Other Financing Sources {Uses):
Operating transfers in (out):
Electric Fund

Revenues and other financing sources over (under}
expenditures and financing sources (us&ﬁ m”!

Fund balances, beginning [[
Revenues and other financing 60131%6}‘

¥

‘&

expenditures and financing sources ﬁ

rer (undgt)

71

Storm Canpital Total Nonmajor
Water Project T.0.P, T.LER. Governmental
Fund Fund Program Fuiids
$ 209242 % - % S 209,242
- 1,927 - 1,927
209,242 192711, - 211,169
L
ol
41,701 1_;1‘11 Hl‘ - 41,701
L7050 - “lmi ‘ - 1,705
28654'““ <o [““19’7‘51 12,626
2064 - R 2,064
4 5 l } ot
. !55_320 N iil 5,320
Py, ,;Hh:. - 192189 192,189
53 65‘4.; L 201,950 255,604
155,587 l;'% 1,927 (201,950) (44,436)
e
'!‘11”]'!. l”“”h !
=i.'.|“§§.H|f.. ;im“!
g_! i L
ll 'il”#é%%;i;..h . 179,857 160,143 240,000
l lﬁtrg;%iil
4L
‘ 'l, 155,587 '8 81,784 §  (41,807) $ 195,564
$i 133376 $ 146867 $ 691,357 § 971,601
w'fl
H.s* ’HHM ||:,,; 155,587 31,784 (41,807) 195,564
:t? .
‘%;%@I $ 288963 § 228651 $ 649,550 $ 1,167,164
H




TOWN OF DALLAS

Storm Water Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2019)

Revenues:

Operating revenues:

Storm water fees
Total revenues

Expenditures:

Salaries and employee benefits

Supplies
Contracted services

Repairs and maintenance
Other operating expenditures

Capital outlay

Total operating expenditures
Revenues over (under) expend%mjﬁﬁm
i i

Other Financing Sourcgs -‘éﬁé s):
Appropriated fund balance j

}l |:(l|!ll!é|3| .
Revenues a ibther ﬁnancnig
dltUleS angd otheh

(under) q;p{

Fund balance, begtm

Fund balance, ending «”i“i“!;i’

2020
Variance
Positive 2019
Budget Actual 'iifgl!gﬁggativel Actual
$ 200379 % 209fgﬁé§m $ 883 $ 141,260
Al . i."”
200379 _; 209,242 *hgh,, 8,863 141,260
fjl;ht“l‘ \ ll”lis”l
1 iilll (X33
é th
47,60 4% 701 5,905 35,129
4,526 s, i, o 2821 39
10,893 '*;i: 2,865 8,028 10,885
» 25,020 gs@ 064 22,956 7,024
HW,9218 ]hz " 3,898 3,880
I 1‘@)3*(116‘. i 103,116 72,173
'ct,zoo 379' h,,;. ,,,53 %54 146,725 129,130
ll iE Y
g K
iH - " 155,587 155,587 12,130
i
t I |n! - - - -
i !!u"' M
iy
t{ } ‘;
i ulcesé T fir
Tancmg ses § - 155,587 § 155,587 12,130
ing ; 133,376 121,246
$ 288,963 $ 133,376
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TOWN OF DALLAS

Capital Project Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2019)

2020
Variance
'}I};,‘i]?ostive 2019
Budget Actual G (Negative) Actual
Revenues: li” f“
Other operating revenues $ - $ ;iil m*r - $ 11,842
Investment earnings - 4 i,1,927 ! I H;, 1,927 1,642
NUELER il ] X .
:!‘I ' l[s!h". )
Total revenues -l 1,927 ‘ }I’,Qrzﬂ'. o 13,484
i I v
! !1[. i M
Expenditures: ’?iiaf:,..ui“’ iy
Capital outlay 79,857 ik - 79,857 -
fH-.
W H
Revenues over (under) expenditures E Hi41(79,857) H“L%,’? 81,784 13,484
M, L
Other Financing Sources (Uses): ‘gh !;E e]i il
Transfer from (to) Electric Fund W 79)857 ‘i ! 79,857 - -
mlt!lli %
Total other financing SOUiC (uses) “ 719,857 79,857 - -
ssl uh '!m-f'
Revenues and other ﬁnancmgl l f ;HHg Hikinee
LN il
sources (uses) over (undei) expen u1e
and other ﬁnaqpm ufseé'u,“, Mt“ $ - 81,784 $ 81,784 § 13.484
E 'i;H; H ii'lgf
Fund balgn,%% fuly 1 m : [il 146,867
[t ‘] ‘

Fund balance, It %Po l $ 228,651
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TOWN OF DALLAS

"T.0.P, T.LE.R." Program

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Inded June 30, 2020

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2019)

2020
Variance
H,jg,Posmve 2019
Budget Actualai (N’egatwe) Actual
i
i
Revenues: ;;E{ﬂ (m“!’n
Grant revenue $ -8 N - ‘;'QHL $ -
A Ta—
Expenditures: il . "i:%";“..*
Top Tier grants l‘%i'!;{m’ ‘dg! - il 7,036
Professional services 25,00b;§g[s.‘1"‘55i" ),761 15,239 11,897
Other expenses - “hi'ﬁ}l - - 1,369
Capital outlay iy 224,539 1102,189 32,350 101,740
i, A :
l““iﬁiq L:gl l’
Total expenditurcs | 2k 539 2011950 47,580 122,041
L!i
il
Revenues over (under) expenditures ' (249 539) H (201 950) 47,589 (122,041)
ul!lﬂl”” |h
Other Financing Sources lses)
Appropriated fund balang dH 9;396 - (89,396) -
Transfer from General Fund ‘”H[ i, oo - - 191,563
Transfer from Electric Fund ”{ !” fi Hime 160,143 160,143 . .
},;m|i|h}|§~ ;ih(r
Revenues a othen finand} ﬁg Urces L
(under) o Wdltuncs and othel j ancm ses  § - (41,807) $ (41,807) 69,522
U | e
Fund balance, m}ilal ll 691,357 621,835
!

Fund balance, June SOH‘II'“”” $ 649,550 $ 691,357
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BUSINESS - TYPE ACTIVITNES
”11””” ”“lh

3! L iyl
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ENTERPRISE| FUNDS”

|] y
i{ 'I

Enterprise Funds are used to accohh‘#f:}r operatlons that are
financed and operated in a manner s1mi to private business
enterprises - where tﬂé ﬁq;ent of the gove 'Llu?m’s governing
body is that the costs of pi’bﬂidmg goods or services to the
general public on a con ;lnumgibasis 1be financed or recovered
primarily through user & al ges' or “}lié‘re the government’s
goverm&%!q’ y has decx that periodic determination of net
mc?lp 1s (B prlate for accountablhty purposes.

a}ér 4{1 Se flj' md Thxs fund is used to account for the
activith ‘ éa aWifh the production, distribution and transmission
{,f,lf potable w‘ﬂte: by the Town to its users and for the operation and

}H |il
3 mal Mej\anee () the Town’s sewer and surface drainage systems.
{

e

”“”“!I Electri }fhmd ~This fund is used to account for the activities
!lgu associatgd with the distribution and transmission of electricity

“m “by the ’qéwn to its users,
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TOWN OF DALLAS

Pagelof3
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
Water and Sewer Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2019)
2020
Variance
” l Positive 2019
Revenues: Budget Actual ‘l” jNegaflve) Actual
Operating revenues: L
‘Water charges $ 2,029,780 i § 6‘ “m@ (180,721)  $ 1,752,040
Sewer charges 974,550 0 805 ' Ny 16,255 961,486
Water and sewer taps 28425 i, 39 575 l“ ll 150 35,575
Other 89,144 116,132 k& 988 | 85,505
Total operating revenues 3,121 89?” 2,995,570 (125 329) 2,834,606
Y ||i ' N
Nonoperating revenues: ;5”” gﬂ}"i
Rental income 63,620 il 82,800 19,171 63,629
Total nonoperating revenues By 63,629 " !l $2.800 19,171 63,629
Total revenues "r(‘;ii *;3i '1”8!5 ,528 3,078 3&701 : (107,158) 2,898,234
ST !" '
Expenditures: i‘;Eg '”‘"“nj,i i
Operating expenditures: ‘51 " l d
Water and sewer operations ”!mm "j}i
Salaries and employee beneﬂts {i ' :1‘3,061 T71,175 11,886 701,847
Travel Il H; “ 9500 3,695 5,805 18,395
Supplies ' *,_l i ! 80,100 37,229 42,371 45,876
Insurance “!;;? dIHHHE it 78,183 76,074 2,109 67,827
Repairs and mamtfmah% 1" 'i*’é%i; ] 256,321 182,307 74,014 173,757
Other operating expenditurés iﬁ‘.;h 352;1;;,,_ A 454,586 444,423 10,163 305,281
L “H I ‘ “I*“ 1,661,751 1,514,903 146,848 1,312,982
Water treﬁtnl ,t and distribution | ' t o
Salaries and em]“ﬁyee benefits tl 299,690 268,384 31,306 257,188
Supplies ‘l I | 25,000 13,259 11,741 19,943
“Chemicals {“L ,f‘ 66,000 52,230 13,770 62,435
Other operating expendlt ﬁ{i 249,593 168,416 81,177 140,751
" 640,283 502,289 137,994 480,317
Waste collection and treatment
Salaries and employee benefits 143,832 112,757 31,075 121,846
Chemicals 52,000 48,441 3,559 41,812
Supplies 4,000 3,449 551 1,591
Other operating expenditures 295,465 215,003 80,462 252,898
495297 379,650 115,647 418,147
cont,
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TOWN OF DALLAS
Page2 of 3
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
Water and Sewer Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2019)
2020
Variance
Posmve 2019
Budget Actual if”i( jNegatwei Actual
I
Total operating expenditures $ 2,797,331 $ 2, '9, g th“i“ $ 400,490 $ 2,211,446
Debt service: il ]“‘ i'- 15,“*1
Principal retirement 185,849 " 191,570 i (s 721) 180,855
Interest and fees 99,9,255" 101,186 (1l 160)" 104,917
Total debt service 285,‘"?’7’5‘ ‘,-; b, 292,756 (6,9é [} 285,772
i ;' { :"" :
Capital outlay: t
Water and sewer operations i 208,569 ‘%Qﬂ ,904 (32,335) 180,855 i
Water treatment and distribution ’i” ”] 11,874 ﬁ ?l— 11,874 15,039
Water collection and treatment i 000, 23; so 16,850 11,549
Tota! capital outlay ’!L 260443“,11 064,054 (3,611 207,443
Total expenditures 313;43?549 "'l Hos3 652 389,897 2,704,662
Revenues over (under) 6xpetldltl‘.ll‘é§ ”””L } (I§,§,021) 124,718 282,739 193,572
|h1€ ! Eiia‘}"'
Other Finaneing Sources stes | ; ' “ gt
Appropriated fund balance K I l]“!' ' !k‘ S 154 021 - {154,021) .
Gain (loss} on dlspos§l|pﬁ:ﬂplta assels'|! Hh 4,000 (1,014) {5,014 {1,504)
Proceeds from | dnllowmg ‘ ‘-*i',i?)‘g, (Hi“l“ - 35,692 35,692 -
Grant reven ll ! f!li ‘ ' ”] : 179,684 179,684 5,000
Total othet i:!nfhng sources ” 158,021 214,362 56,341 3,496
i
Revenues and Othiﬁ Jé»!li! ﬁes over (un ir)
-expenditures and othert lﬁﬁ: . ‘;?fi $ - 339,080 $ 339,080 197,069
Hint
Reconciliation From Budge)aﬁ -y Basis (Modified Acerual) to Full Acerual:
Increase {decrease) in mventm y (14,016) (5,571)
{Increase) decrease in accrued vacation pay 537 (7,848)
{Increase) decrease in accrued interest 552 554
Payment of debt principal 191,570 180,855
Proceeds from borrowing (35,692) -
Fines and penalties - 10,000
Transfer in from Electric Fund to Water and Sewer
cont,
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TOWN OF DALLAS

Page 3 of 3, cont,
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
Water and Sewer Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2019)

2020
Variance
[ Positive 2019
Budget Actual rIU gNegatwe[ Actunl
Increase {decrease) in deferred outflows of resources - pensions 25 )“”l $ 79,918
{Increase) decrease in net pension liability (43 470) I } (103,569
{Increase) decrease in deferred inflows of resources - pensions %h, (3 367) 1“ 3,796
Capital outlay l,:*’ 364,054 J!E;f.' 207,443
Depreciation i (400,666) i;i";;;n (391,215)
Vo E‘I‘:l'; ‘ { !
LI “‘li-‘f:, g

Change in net position s, 873,335 $ 171,431
'l""i"l—'—— ———

!
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TOWN OF DALLAS

Page 1 of 2
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
Eleetric Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2019)
2020
Variance
Positive 2019

Revenues: Budget Actual il;[?ﬂ}i_gatlve) Actual
Operating revenues:

Electricity sales $8,761,446  $8, 146 SQH “ $ (614,619) $9,149,965

Other operating revenues 130,349 12 058 ‘ lI (2,291) 146,680
Total operating revenues 8,891,795 ? 2743886 h!'(flé ,509) 9,296,645
Nonoperating revenues: i il

Investment earnings 13, 93:?' 10 482 fg ’?“5' })" 16,662
Total revenues 8,907, 728' li ‘ 18 285 §68 (622‘,‘360) 9,313,307

R
Expenditures: ! HH
Salaries and employee benefits [ljil ﬁQS ,646 1,14% u37§ll 61,271 1,018,707
Electrical power purchases ‘1 6!7;'153 4,968, 542 798,611 5,009,389
Supplies =1 151 9p0“ "‘ Hl%?l 1192 30,708 117,789
Contracted services ‘{#97;196 192,992 104,204 104,108
Insurance ”;[[[“”g (2,520 95,738 6,782 87,702
Repairs and maintenance ! l 242[ 030 154,569 87,461 185,075
Other operating expendit}u‘éL 21 3!57:1 5 168,995 44,720 168,226
Debt service - principal *;Mr lt ‘HH} I i ’ 114 173 111,890 2,283 110,711
Debt service - interest ”!;; R 410 6,197 (1,978) 7,677
Capital outlay /il N *’siésl, 413,334 332,300 86,034 711,677
Total operait[' eXandltL]IBS} %H i ”ii!%t' 8,419,886 7,199,790 1,220,096 7,521,059
o [ 4

Revenues ovm: '(L(“del) c:xpf:ndltu1 % ) 487,842 1,085,578 597,736 1,792,248
Other Financing SA\L‘*{Q J (Uses
Appropriated fund balaﬁ ! 478,891 - (478,891) -
Gain (loss) on dlsposxtlonT f assets 20,000 16,563 (3,437) -
Proceeds from borrowingl 149,000 132,265 (16,735) -
Coal ash recovery revenue 150,000 129,747 (20,253) -
Coal ash recovery charge (150,000) (150,000) - (330,442)
Transfers from (to):

Top Tier Program Fund (160,143) (160,143) - -

Capital Reserve Fund (79,857) (79,857) - -

General Fund-payment in lieu of taxes (895,733) {895,733) - (915,733)
Total other financing sources (uses) (487,842)  (1,007,158) (519,316) (1,246,175)
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TOWN OF DALLAS
Page 2 of 2, cont.
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
Electric Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2019)

2020
Variance
‘;I}j,;l’osmve 2019
Budget Actuallisji (Negative) Actual
it

Revenues and other sources over (under) “‘ ‘“l h

expenditures and other uses $ - i 78 420 '$H 78,420  $ 546,072

'—Jm‘f”“a. % i

Reconciliation From Budgetary Basis Hi.‘. i 1}; g

(Modified Accrual) to Full Acerual: Al it
Increase (decrease) in inventory 'Ilig';;s *i' l,(8{3;421) "’ 9,369
(Increase) decrease in accrued vacation pay i}i 3,377 (3,142)
(Increase) decrease in accrued interest . 112,357 2,149
(Increase) decrease in net pension liability A l! ,.l (ﬁmlz"? Ly (110,634)
Increase (decrease) in deferred outflows of r 1esoul eslbéhslo (25,635) 85,297
(Increase) decrease in deferred inflows of lesc)uu:e?I pen31oli§ “l*i i i(§;421} 3,589
Capital outlay I £32,300 711,677
Proceeds from borrowing ll”m“‘” lii‘ " (132,265) -
Payment of debt principal i’ ]] ‘ii 111,890 110,711
Depreciation U | e (395,502) (354,708)

Wi

Changes in net positjon wﬂi LT $ (106,072) $1,000,381

U;ml'nhw "
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TOWN OF DALLAS

Schedule of Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable

June 30,2020
Uncollected Uncollected
Balance Collections Balance
Fiscal Year June 30,2019  Additions  and Credits June 30, 2020
2019 - 2020 $ - $1,404,249 ﬁ;ﬁ!ﬁw 702 % 24,547
2018 - 2019 12,207 7,283 4,924
20172018 6,644 —;;silﬂm 1,718 4,926
2016 - 2017 4,750 ;rgii 994 3,756
2015 - 2016 3,794 iy i H %1 336 3,258
2014 - 2015 2470 - ‘ |¢§§,1‘_ 2,189
2013 - 2014 3,072 - L6999 L. 1,373
2012 - 2013 4,044 ' ‘m 2,197“1‘ 1,847
2011 -2012 4,049 "izgi;s:l‘ UL 2,495 1,554
2010 - 2011 4,192 1;, - 1,690 2,502
2009 - 2010 3,92 -asé; 3,924 -
l }V “u !mz}" i
Total $ i 49!'146*  $1:404,249' P $1,402,519 50,876
[}
i 1“
E] il i h i'i!g
Less allowance for uncoliecttbwﬁmmH $|i‘ (17,928)
i H
Balance i IH% $ 32,949

l !'HH“’“"‘!‘ .*tlmﬂ!im‘g,;m‘:}u'

Reconcnlemex;t Wi lillké‘w; fe: Eim
J“

Taxes - AdWel orem - Genexal

Adjustments ases and dlSC

Taxes written of ‘

Interest collected ’gg ‘ {

Total collections and cre ﬂs

R
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2,014
11,170
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TOWN OF DALLAS

Analysis of Current Tax Levy

June 30, 2020
Total Levy
Property
Excluding
Town Wide Registered Registered
Property Total i“h Mator Mofor
Yaluation Rate ;; Vehicles Vehicles
,H H!”
Original levy: ,il1 H
Property laxes at current year's rafe $ 317,991,500 0.40 %i‘ 'ﬁ’]l 966 $|i I ,271,960 $ -
Motor vehicles taxed at current B YU f ;f ‘
year rate 36,640,478 0401 146 562 ’lg!H;i-, o 146,562
S 1 i, s
Total 354,631,978 ]i ; . “Fﬁ{ 528 1,271,966 146,562
it
Discoveries - current and prior year taxes 128 500 .”‘.Ei 1,297 1,297 -
Relcases (3,894307) }3!5_1,5;7,6,).' (15,576) .
T i
Total (3,765 4673 l; ??5“! g (14,279) (14,279) -
(A
Total property valuation i””““”“ 1,3 350,866,571 ‘1; a
H
Net levy ﬂl i !]l [ u}'g 1,404,249 1,257,687 146,562
LT T
Less uncotlected taxes at June 30, 2020 mi” ! 1: (24,547 (24,547 -
‘ ,|n)|h|1iﬂ.=! ; { "%{h
Current year's tgibh colleoted -'.;55!1;*5 LT $ 1379702 § 1233140 § 146,562
11” il,t i.“lh
Cutrent 16\3;/ cm'lieté percentage | ) 98.25% 98.05% 100.00%

i
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Lowdermilk Church & Co., L.L.P.
Certified Public Accountants

121 N. Sterling Street

Morganton, North Carolina 28655
Phone: (828} 433-1226

Fax: (828) 433-1230

Independent Auditors’ Report On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting And On
Compliance And Other Matters Based On An Audit Of Finan ﬁll Statements
Performed In Accordance With Government Auditiltmi' atidards

i ! t
To the Honorable Mayor and R d““i
Members of the Board of Aldermen e il
Town of Dallas, North Carolina +f .I;:. ! ”i !
ST
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards gener:e!lll'{yi ab’éiepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government ; tiditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the ﬁnéng{i}gl statements of the'! (ﬁ ermnmental activitics, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate rematniiig: und information ‘{ﬂw Town of Dallas, North Carolina,
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the 1"?113’1! dltftites, to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the Town of Dallas, Notth Carolina’s basic :ﬁananci_ai[, ié‘tﬁté;l‘ﬁ;eﬁﬁsg and have issued our report thereon dated
, 2020, S
I
In planning and performing Cgfl,li‘llgill dit of the financial statemiéiats, we considered the Town of Dallas, North
Carolina’s internal control over fi idr'l ‘ia,l;ié%mﬁ‘?'gl Qi};ltc;‘:g:ﬁﬁi control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for f :ipurpose 'E)f'e‘Xﬁi'essing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for

Internal Control over Financigl%ﬁ};lm li'&’1g

111
the purpose of expiésélil Hﬁ)ﬁ opinion o t’i‘he effectiveness of the Town of Dallas, North Carolina’s internal control.
!{)ﬁ the effectiveness of the Town of Dallas, North Carolina’s internal

Accordingly, ]é| do not exprés’s%'ﬁ; 1 opiniott
control, -sl‘ﬂ ‘ i l

|‘ !l

A deficiency in iﬁte‘%ﬂ :l control exi; L when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the nokn ‘-ahcourse o'ﬂ erforming their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timé!-lyLb{‘tsis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal

control, such that there is 't ég’égnable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or de Qcted and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance,

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was not
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses o significant deficiencies
and, therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. Given these
limitations, during our audit, we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses, We did identify certain deficiencies in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and responses, that we consider to be material weaknesses, See 2020-001, 2020-002 and 2020-003.

82




Compliance and Other Matters

As patt of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town of Dallas, North Carolina’s financial statements
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts, However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of
our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Audifing Standards.

Town of Dallas, North Carolina’s Response to Findings iimih
{ K

i , . .
Town of Dallas, North Carolina’s response to the findings identified in our aw;li‘t; is deseribed in the accompanying
schedule of findings and responses. Town of Dallas, North Carolina’s res j(‘alns. ‘. “TI not subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we exﬂl'ﬁ‘?q no opinion on it.
' il
.:,f; . L i l '
Purpose of this Report R e g l?ﬁ;
r!il 'I‘lé ll!”

. . B At . " H ] ) .
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of pu%‘g :t‘q:;tmg of 1‘3!{;31’1131 control and !cl,bmpllance, and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effecﬁ]\(éness‘;,g hl{efentity’s interal control or on
compliance, This report is an integral patt of an audit performed iijxizi{:t;gl‘dance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. .Z/,&;FTpi'dingly, this communication is not

suitable for any other purpose. M i ]
gehéri . Hl:i“l
I !
j{;’_h“”i:mm L!l
|“ ‘H““l e 4
i}| *i”l! i‘“}l.%““f
! KL
iy I
Morganton, North Carolina |} i
oy,
N |||;: I'|  _ H .";,4-
TR
il ‘il:’;?g
gt it ‘“;i}.
' ' ".‘liefi ' I.i .
14 i it
!,;ii”[ i‘% “i
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TOWN OF DALLAS, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Findings and Responses
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Financial Statement Findings:

Material Weaknesses:

Finding: 20620-001 Significant Audit Adjustments
ilih
Criteria: A system of controls should be in place to dei;x;ﬂ andl prevent errors.
Condition: Significant audit adjustments are ptoposeci E} ctions to the basic financial
statements that, in our judgement, may ﬂb ha j @en detected except through our

auditing procedures. The existence of s uch mate @ ad_]ustments indicates that the
Town’s system of controls did not dgfect'and plevenf iHCh errors, We have
provided management with a ;ep61t of these adjustme t#lt

Effect: Errors could occur in financjdl reporting and not be deteéte i 'a timely manner,
Cause: The Town’s system of i mtehin ‘control is; ppt workmg effectfvely

Identification of repeat finding: This is a repeat finding from thei Ilmmedfate previous audit, 2019-001.
Recommendation: Management should examine eXIStnig controls to see if they can be strengthened,

thus, reducing the number of adjustﬁ’xﬁiﬁ at year end.
Views of responsible officials “l ity F

. . i
and planned corrective action:  The Town agt e Eintlii }; ﬁndmg and will) ‘aﬂhew to the corrective action plan

Vit o |

on page 87 of this’ 1ep01t '”I iy !

hif
W SR
Finding; 2020-002 Acﬁlal)unts Recelvabié{e aie not Beil Jg’ Reconciled

Il L |
Criteria; i The a lﬁ nts receivablé detail ledger should be reconcifed and agreed to the

o !d] general Jedger, ]lp,
Condition: ' 1éheg acqé m re{c!:e’nlfabll:a detail ledger is not being reconciled to the general
HIE L
Effect: Mm . Erroy: g# ould occur in financial reporting and not be detected in a timely manner,
Cause: it il it iy A recoi ptlatlon is not being performed.
Recommend An i l he deta fédeOunts receivable ledger should be reconciled to the general ledger
;sij “ , ’ ?nthly
Views of respo g‘il}le officials
and planned cotrebtllie action: ihe Town agrees with this finding and will adhere to the corrective action plan
‘? tm l ‘{_gﬁ page 87 of this report,
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TOWN OF DALLAS, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Findings and Responses
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Noncompliance:
Finding: 2020-003 Excess Expenditures Over Appropriations

Criteria: G.8. 159-28(a) states that no obligation may be incurred in a function accounted
for in a fund included in the budget ordinance, u}“lﬁﬁ: the budget ordinance
includes an appropriation authorizing the obligﬁ lon and an unencumbered
balance remains in the appropriation sufﬁc{‘f'ﬁ ,'i o pay in the current fiscal year

‘ the sums obligated by the transaction fqn;;f e i‘ 'l’elnt fiscal year.

Condition: The Town expended more than approp’lji‘ated in’ h;iapnual budget ordinance as

follows: e }li” :
! te }{i

it it

Water Fund - geb.t service was overspent bﬂﬂij?‘@,%”l.
ICapital outla]jﬂi\;vas overspent b ,]$§,611.
. " [BAE NG I

SN ¢
General Fund - Debt ‘Lﬁeﬂqf"éé was overspent by $17,361.
Police Wé?i;pyerspent by $26,254.
Effect: Moneys were Sp(l’.,'lilii*: thiat had not been ob Igl‘ge,d’hnd appropriated,
Cause: The Town purcha'é, d %Hl(}} es,through lease obligations that had not been
budgeted for in thethudget {;i‘difﬁ'é} gmgapd a budget amendment was not adopied.
Recommendation: Before an obligation js w?incur th t!!. iil exceed the amount that was previously

wed in the budgcl,"r ordinance, an amendment to the budget should be
i )

I
:ii "he Toywn agrees with tl};ig aﬁnding and will adhere to the corrective action plan

"Hntnand $7 Cfithis renoit.
ey

i}
1. 1
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Corrective Action Plan
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Section II.  Financial Statement Findings

Finding 2020-001:

Name of contact person: Jonathan Newton, Finance Director
Corrective action; Management is aware that year-end audit aq\) s1 ments are typically required.
Management will examine existing cont d) s g) lf they can be strengthened,

gwen available resources, thus, 1educﬂ{ 'the nui bmlof audit adjustments
required at year-end. In the arcas whpie the cost/beilis tdoes not jUStlfy
improving the control system, matagement will exewlée‘due caution in

performing their oversight fi (nctlon 'i ” e i

Proposed completion date: The Town will implement thlS immedia{ﬁ Y L
i 311 ! '
T / ;;(

Finding 2020-002: _ ! d[ l
Name of contact person: Jonathan Newtonl %I apce Director l”l m
Corrective action: Management wifl tecot eﬂe the detali accodnts receivable ledger to the general

ledgeron a monthlyl basm ;1 i
Proposed completion date: The Town will 1mplé Pen{ this 1mmlslbl1ately

! ]iﬂm“”” !
Finding 2020-003: f.;}!;‘h[ “ '1‘5 e
¢! i h

Name of contact person: J ﬁat la ilfl]«l:\}&ql] ssz{nce Director
Corrective action: ment wil comply with G.S. 159-28(a), and budget amendments will be

il t :
(i il i imi adopt ;1{)1 to making expenditures that exceed budgeted amounts,

:!
Proposed cormiétlon date: m Pe Towi “vsgjll implement this immediately. |
l

N
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TOWN OF DALLAS, NORTH CAROLINA

Summary Schedule of Prior Audif Findings
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Finding 2019-001:

Still applicable,

Finding 2019-002:

Still applicable.

Finding 2019-003:

Corrected.

Finding 2019-004:

Still applicable.
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Lowdermilk Church & Co., L.L.P.
Certified Public Accountants

121 N. Sterling Street

Morganton, North Carolina 28655
Phone: (828) 433-1226

Fax: (828) 433-1230

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of
the Board of Aldermen iy
Town of Dallas, North Carolina ;if M,

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, tl'!pll!) Cm ss-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Town of Dallas,, 01t11 élma for the year ended

June 30, 2020. Professional standards require that we provide you vnlth mfosmatlolﬁ ﬁ ﬂut our responsibilities
under generally accepted auditing standards (and, if applicable, GoVemment Auditing’ Sta@lg:{atde and the Uniform
Guidance), as well as cettain information related to the planned scope and timing of our aud . We have
communicated such information in our engagement letter to;}Jf)u dated Jah}Ialy 13, 2020, Pl})%éSSlOliai standards
also require that we communicate to you the following informa} 011 1ela§§a to pur audit

|;|Ei

Significant Audit Findings

“l “
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices it )l' ml' i ””} gl‘
t | il ! : b H ”
Management is responsible for the selection and use! Qf appl} 11&,&;1 acs??untmg policies, The significant
accounting policies used by Town of Dallas, North Caiol Iua are des chl ed in Note [ to the financial statements.
We noted no transactions enteled 1? Town of Dal ‘f North Cat'dlina during the year for which there is a lack
of authoritative guidance or ¢ C{zé&nsug r significant transactions have been recognized in the financial

statements in the proper pez ;(? i 13

Accounting estimates are an mteil U 1J[ dﬁﬂéif nangial statements prepared by management and are based on
management’s knowl ;d ¢ and expé f ¢ about past‘and current events and assumptions about future events.
Certain accountlpgleétn iesme{ pa1t101ﬂ$ Jy sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and
because of thg oss1b:l;ty thafﬂxi re everits 4 A ecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The
most sensm\( !Tstzmates affectmét}]e Towa f Dallas, North Carolina’s financial statements were:
L}
Managel t's estimate o e allowances for doubtful accounts is based on percentage of ad valorem
taxes 16061&, and utlllt s receivable. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop
the allowance | doub; I accounts in determining that they are reasonable in relation to the financial
statements take .ﬂxwhole

Management’s estimate of depreciation is based on estimated useful lives, We evaluated the key factors
and assumptions used to develop depreciation in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the
financial statements taken as a whole.

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial
statement users. The most sensitive disclosure affecting the financial statements was:

The disclosure related to the debt in Note III B.6 to the financial statements describes the Town’s debt
obligations and debt service requirements,

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.




Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit.
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit,
other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them fo the appropriate level of management.
Management has corrected all such misstatements. The following attached material misstatements detected as a
result of audit procedures were corrected by management.

ﬂ”““'h

Disagreements with Management il

!
For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financie}ré!éc ?15 i!tii“,g’ reporting, or auditing
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significhnt to the i’ﬁn‘a cial statements or to the

!
auditors® report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreemen,tq {e‘nro&e duringlt'hlé1 I‘?ﬁ rse of our audit,
T BRI %}‘

g

Management Representations l}: v ' *zfi“l [ i

it i

Pl . WL . .
We have requested certain representations from management tfia;- f}."P lIquflijldled in the management representation
letter dated , 2020. ‘ J;i!%;f"
Sl

. 13}
Management Consultations with Other Independgﬁﬁccozmmnm i [l “ ’ i W
A, ; |?§l{ll
. AR it - .

In some cases, management may decide to consult L{n‘th wtﬁ!éﬁ accountants about auditing and accounting matters,
similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain sitgationsIg htg iﬁ?hﬁﬂitation involves the application of an
accounting principle to Town of Dallas, North Caroling’ te

s financial s‘tfétements, or a determination of the type of
auditors’ opinion that may be ex {gﬁé‘ﬁﬁ F those statetﬁ%hts, our professional standards require the consulting

accountant to check with us to determing|that the consul Hnt has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there
ntants. sy

. 1)
were 110 such consultat:ons,ﬂ;ﬂ{‘tk\ other ac
Fs vkl

£ it i
i | . o
Other Audit Findings or Issues "ll”““gi' ‘”“HHHI*’.A«'
LT A o
nililihe : - o .
We generally dﬁbifs”s' la”\}ja‘ﬂgtjq of ma.tténé“jfcludmg the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, witll management é’a%u i i '-319 retention as Town of Dallas, North Carolina’s auditors. However,

year prio
» B t . . .
these dlsc_uz{ } s occurred in thé rmal col“ 'se of our professional relationship, and our responses were not a
gk ! i . 1
condition to ouxi fz;?t‘ention. )

;l

I
We applied certain iimiteg I‘:l‘bfgedures to the Management’s Discussion and Analysis, the Local Government
Employees’ Retirement Sy&t‘em Schedules of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability {Asset) and
Contributions, the Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance Schedules of Changes in Total
Pension Liability and Total Pension Liability As a Percentage of Covered Payroll, which are (is) tequired
supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial statements, Our procedures consisted of
inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inguiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the RSL

!51

! 1t
Other Matters “lui“ ,fi




We were engaged fo report on the combining statements, individual fund statements, budgetary schedules, and
other schedules, which accompany the financial statements, but are not RSI. With respect to this supplementary
information, we made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing
the information to determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is
appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the
supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the
financial statements themselves.

Restriction on Use

This information is intended solely for the use of the Honorable Mayor, the megﬂ%els &f the Board of Aldermen

and the management of Town of Dallas, North Carolina and is not intended ti? e, and should not be, used by
anyone other than these specified parties. ﬁ} i [I m
A i
Very truly yours, 4l 1, i ‘IE}’ N
' A b K tgf“ .
| iy
i‘l EI‘{“‘ iii !
il e
: !.5!“!}{'
Morganton, North Carolina '}}jéi-.
2020 B, ‘-U””
;{t}”“l”" ' ;l"”ll
I H
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